
 

 

NOTICE 
 
Notice is hereby given that the 18th Annual General Meeting of Members of Prabal Motors 
Private Limited (“Company”) will be held at 12.00 PM on Friday, 26th July, 2024, at the 
Registered Office of the Company at 32/2571 H,II Floor, Kuttukaran Towers, Mamangalam, 
Palarivattom P.O., Ernakulam-682025, Kerala, to transact the following businesses: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for 
the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 together with the Reports of the Board of 
Directors and Auditors thereon. 
 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Francis K. Paul (DIN: 00018825), who retires by 
rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

3. To fix remuneration of Statutory Auditors and in this regard to consider and if thought 
fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 142 (1) read with 
Section 102 (2) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013 and  Rules made thereunder the Board of Directors of the company be and 
is hereby authorized to fix the remuneration of M/s. B S R and Co, 49/179 A, 3rd 
Floor, Syama Business Centre, NH 47 Bypass Road, Vyttila, Kochi – 682019, Firm 

registration No. 128510W, who have been appointed by the Members in the 18th 
Annual General meeting as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period 
of 5 years, pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.”  
 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

4. Appointment of Mrs. Malini Eapen (DIN: 02051164)  as Director 

 

To Appoint Mrs. Malini Eapen (DIN: 02051164) as Director of the Company and in this 

regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the 

following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:  

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 149,152 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the rules made thereunder 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 
the force) ,  Mrs. Malini Eapen (DIN: 02051164), who was appointed as an Additional 
Director on 15th November, 2023 and in respect of whom the Company has received a 
notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act from a member proposing his 
candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as Director of the 
Company, liable to retire by rotation.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. John K Paul, Director of the Company, be and is hereby  
authorized to file necessary returns/forms with the Registrar of Companies, 
Ernakulam and to do all such acts, deeds and things that may be necessary, proper, 
expedient or incidental for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolution.” 
 

5. Appointment of Mr. Benny Jose Kuruthukulangara (DIN: 09704607) as Director 

 

To Appoint Mr. Benny Jose Kuruthukulangara (DIN: 09704607) as Director of the 

Company and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 

modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:  

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 149,152 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the rules made thereunder 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 
the force) ,  Mr. Benny Jose Kuruthukulangara (DIN: 09704607), who was appointed as 
an Additional Director on 15th November, 2023 and in respect of whom the Company 
has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act from a member proposing 
his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as Director of the 
Company, liable to retire by rotation.”  





 

 

 

               
NOTES: 
 
 

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to 
appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and the proxy need not be a 
member of the Company. The proxies to be effective should be lodged with the 
Company at least 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.   
 

2. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of the members not exceeding 50 and holding 
in aggregate not more than 10 percent of the total share capital of the company 
carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10 percent of total share capital 
of the company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and 
such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. 
 

3. A corporate member intending to send its authorized representatives to attend the 
meeting in terms of section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 is requested to send to 
the Company a certified copy of the board resolution authorizing such 
representative to attend and vote on its behalf at the meeting. 

 
4. Members/proxies/authorized representatives are requested to submit the 

attendance slips duly filled in for attending the meeting. Members holding shares in 
physical form are requested to write their folio number in the attendance slip for 
attending the meeting. 

5. During the period beginning 6 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of 
the meeting and ending with the conclusion of the meeting, a member would be 
entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at any time during the business hours of the 
Company. 
 

6. All documents referred to in the notice and accompanying explanatory statement 
are open for inspection at the registered office of the Company on all working days, 
except Saturdays, between 11:00 a.m. To 1:00 p.m. up to the date of the general 
meeting and at the venue of the meeting for the duration of the meeting. 

 



 

 

7. Members are requested to kindly notify the Company of any changes in their 
addresses/e-mail address so as to enable the Company to address future 
communication to their correct addresses.  

  

8. Pursuant to section 20(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 35 of the 
Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014, as amended, Companies are permitted to 
send official documents to their shareholders electronically.  

 

 
 

9. Copies of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and other 
relevant records in respect of the ordinary business are available at the Registered 
Office of the Company and electronically for inspection of the members during 
business hours between 10 am and 5 pm on all working days, except Saturdays. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





 

 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
  
 Item No.4: 
 
Mrs. Malini Eapen, having DIN: 02051164, D/o Mr. Jacob Eapen, resident of Valiyathottathil 
House, Dewan’s Road, M G Road P.O, Ernakulam 682016, was appointed as an Additional 
Director of the Company by the Board of Directors with effect from  15th November,2023. 
 
In terms of provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, rules made thereunder he 
holds office up to the date of next Annual General Meeting. A notice has been received from a 
member in accordance with section 160 of the Act, signifying his intention to propose 
appointment of Mrs. Malini Eapen as a Director. Her office is liable to retire by rotation. 
 
The Board of Directors have decided in its meeting dated 27th May, 2024 to recommend to 
members to appoint Mrs. Malini Eapen as a Director liable to retire by rotation. 
 
Except Mrs. Malini Eapen, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives 
are interested or concerned in respect of the resolution as set out vide item (4) in the notice. 
 
The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out at item no.4 for approval by the 
shareholders. 
 
There is no other information and facts to disclose that may enable members to understand 

the meaning, scope and implications of the said item of business and to take decision thereon.   

  
Item No.5: 
 
Mr. Benny Jose Kuruthukulangara, having DIN: 09704607, S/o Mr. Jose Anthappan 
Kuruthukulangara, resident of Kuruthukulangara  House, Near Edathiri Temple, Padiyam 
Village, Anthicad, Thrissur- 680641, was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company 
by the Board of Directors with effect from  15th November,2023. 
 
In terms of provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, rules made thereunder he 
holds office up to the date of next Annual General Meeting. A notice has been received from a 
member in accordance with section 160 of the Act, signifying his intention to propose 
appointment of Mr. Benny Jose Kuruthukulangara as a Director. His office is liable to retire by 
rotation. 
The Board of Directors have decided in its meeting dated 27th May, 2024 to recommend to 
members to appoint Mr. Benny Jose Kuruthukulangara as a Director liable to retire by rotation 





 

 

 
 

 
ATTENDANCE SLIP 

 
(Please complete this attendance slip and hand over at the entrance of the Meeting hall) 

 
I, hereby record my presence at the 18th Annual General Meeting of Prabal Motors Private 
Limited held at 12.00 PM on Friday, 26th July, 2024 at 32/2571 H,II Floor, Kuttukaran Towers, 
Mamangalam, Palarivattom P.O., Ernakulam-682 025., Kerala. 

PLEASE FILL THE ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING 
VENUE 

Name  

Address & 
email ID 

 

Folio no.  

No. of shares 
held 

 

 
I certify that I am the registered shareholder / proxy for the registered shareholder of the 
Company. 
 

Signature of member / proxy 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



                                                                      Form No. MGT 11 
PROXY FORM 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, and rule 19(3) of Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

Name, address 
and email ID of the 
shareholder(s) 

 

Folio no.  

I / we, being the member(s) of Prabal Motors Private Limited, holding shares of   Company, 
hereby appoint: 
name:____________________________________________________________address:_
________________________________________________________signature:_________
________________________________ or failing him; 
name:_________________________________________________________________add
ress: 
________________________________________________signature:_________________
____________ 

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 18th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company held at 12.00 PM on Friday, 26th July, 2024 at Registered 
Office at 32/2571 H,II Floor, Kuttukaran Towers, Mamangalam, Palarivattom P.O., Ernakulam-
682 025., Kerala or / and at any adjournment thereof, in respect of such Resolutions as 
indicated below: 

Sl. 
no. 

Resolutions 
Voted 
for 

Voted 
against 

1 
To receive, consider and adopt the financial statements of the 
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024   

2 
To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Francis K. Paul (DIN: 
00018825), who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment. 

  

3 To fix remuneration of Statutory Auditors    

4 To appoint Mrs. Malini Eapen (DIN: 02051164)  as Director   

5 
To appoint Mr. Benny Jose Kuruthukulangara (DIN: 09704607) 

as Director   

Signed this ---------------- day of ------------------ 2024 

 

 

Signature of proxy holder(s)     Signature of shareholder 

 

 

 

 

Affix One 

Rupee 

Revenue 

Stamp 



Notes: (1) The proxy, to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the 
Company not less than FORTY EIGHT HOURS before the commencement of the meeting. (2) A 
proxy need not be a member of the Company. (3) In the case of joint holders, the vote of the 
senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of 
the vote of the other joint holders. Seniority shall be determined by the order in which the 
names stand in the Register of Members. (4) The Form of proxy confers authority to demand or 
join in demanding a poll. (5) The submission by a member of this Form of proxy will not preclude 
such member from attending in person and voting at the meeting. 

 































 

 

 
FORM NO. AOC -2 

ANNEXURE A TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 
Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 
certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto. 
 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis – 
 

SL. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

A Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship 

NOT 

APPLICABLE 

B Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction 

C Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 

D 
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including 
the value, if any 

E 
Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or 
transactions’ 

F Date (s) of approval by the Board 

G Amount paid as advances, if any 

H 
Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as 
required under first proviso to section 188 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 





 

Annexure B 

 
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

                           (Pursuant to Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014) 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: 

CSR policy encompasses the company’s philosophy for delineating its responsibility as a corporate Citizen 
and lays down the guidelines and mechanism for carrying out socially useful activities/ projects and 

programs for welfare and sustainability, development of community at large. The CSR provisions are 

applicable to the Company with effect from the Financial Year 2022-23 and the Company has undertaken 

the CSR activities directly and through NGO. 

2.  Composition of CSR Committee: 
 
The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020, provides that the Constitution of CSR Committee is not 
mandatory if total amount to be spent as per the CSR obligation of the Company is less than Rs. 50 
Lakhs and in such cases the Board can discharge the functions of CSR Committee. The total CSR 
obligation was Rs. 1.21 million and amount spent by the Company during the FY 2023-24 was Rs. 1.21 
million, hence the Company has discharged its CSR functions through the Board of Directors.   

 
3. Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved by 

the board are disclosed on the website of the company. 

The Company has approved its CSR policy in the Board Meeting dated 18th May, 2022. The   Company does 
not have Website.   

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried    
out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable. 

     N/A 

  

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135. 

           Rs. 6,02,49,268/- 

  (b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135. 

            Rs. 12,04,985/- 

      (c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial                      
years. 



 

             Nil 

      (d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any. 

             Nil 

 (e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]. 

         Rs. 12,04,985/- 

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project). 

           Rs. 12,14,985/- 

     (b) Amount spent in Administrative overheads. 

      Nil 

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable. 

      N/A 

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]. 

       Rs. 12,14,985/-  

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year: 

 Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 
Total 

Amount 
Spent for 

the Financial 
Year. (in Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR Account as 

per sub¬section (6) of 
section 135. 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under Schedule VII as per second proviso 

to sub-section (5) of section 135. 

 Amount. Date of 
transfer. 

Name of the 
Fund 

Amount. Date of 
transfer. 

 12,14,985 - - - -  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any:   

Sl.No Particular Amount (in Rs.) 
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company 

as per sub-section (5) of section 135 

12,04,985 

(ii) Total amount required to be set off for the financial 
year, if any 

- 

(iii) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (i)- (ii) 12,04,985 

(iv) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 12,14,985 

(v) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] 10,000 
(vi) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 

programmes or activities of the previous Financial 
Years, if any 

- 

(vii) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial 
Years [(iii)-(iv)] 

10,000 

 

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years: 

Sl.
No 

Precedi
ng 
Financi
al 
Year(s) 

Amount 
transferre
d to 
Unspent 
CSR 
Account 
under 
sub-
section 
(6) of 
section 
135 (in 
Rs.) 

Balance 
Amount in 
Unspent 
CSR 
Account 
under 
sub¬secti
on (6) of 
section 
135 (in 
Rs.) 

Amount 
Spent in 
the 
Financia
l Year 
(in Rs) 

Amount 
transferred to a 
Fund as 
specified under 
Schedule VII as 
per second 
proviso to sub-
section (5) of 
section 135, if 
any 

Amount 
remainin
g to be 
spent in 
succeedi
ng 
Financial 
Years (in 
Rs) 

Defici
e ncy, 
if any 

     Amou
nt (in 
Rs) 

Date of 
Transf
er 

  

1 FY-1 - - - - - - - 
2 FY-2 - - - - - - - 
3 FY-3           -   - - - - - - 
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BS Rand Co 
Chartered Accountants 

49/179A, 3rd Floor, Syama Business Centre 
NH 47 Bypass Road, Vyttila 
Kochi - 682 01 9, India 
Telephone: +91 4844148 500 
Fax: +91 4844148 501 

lndeoendent Auditors Reoort 
To the Members of Prabal Motors Private Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Prabal Motors Private Limited (the "Company") which 
comprise the balance sheet as at 3 1  March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including other 
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 3 1  March 2024, and its profit and other 
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
Section 143 (10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements. 

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs, profiU loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Principal Office: 

14th Floor, Central 8 Wing and North C Wing, Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco Center, 
Westem Express Highway, Garegaon (East), Mumbai - 400063 
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BS Rand Co 

Independent Auditor's Report (Continued) 

Prabal Motors Private Limited 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern 
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

Other Matter 

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 were audited by the 
predecessor auditor who had expressed an unmodified opinion on 30 May 2023. 
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BS Rand Co 

Independent Auditor's Report (Continued) 

Prabal Motors Private Limited 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a. We have sought ar,d obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 2(B)(f) below on reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014.

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. the modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2(A)(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph
2(B)(f) below on reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 27 to the financial statements.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 
the Note 36 a) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(ii) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 36 b) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or 
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Prabal Motors Private Limited 
Balance Sheet as at :u March 2024 (All amounts in Indian Rupees million) 
Assets 
Non-current assets Property, plant and equipment Capital work-in-progress Right-of-use assets Intangible assets Fina.,cial assets Other financial assets Income tax assets (net) Deferred tax assets (net) Other non-current assets 
Total non-current assets 

Current assets Inventories Financial assets Trade receivables Cash and cash equivalents Bonk balances other than cash and cash equivalents Other current assets 
Total current assets 
Total assets 

Equity and liabilities 
Equity Equity share capital Other equity 
Total equity 

Liabilities 
Non-current liabilities Financial liabilities Borrowings Lease liabilities Provisions 
Total non-current liabilities 
Cur�ent liabilities Financial liabilities Borrowings Trade payables - Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprisesOther financial liabilities Provisions Income tax liabilities (net) Other current liabilities 
Total current liabilities 
Total liabilities 

Total equity and liabilities 

Material accounting policies The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. As per our report of even date attached: 
for B S Rand Co 
Chartered Accountants Firm registration number: 1285 IOW 
Baby Paul 
Partner Membership No.: 218255 Kochi 2H1ay 2024 Notes 

4 
4 
33 
5 

11 
26 
26 
6 

7 

8 
9 

10 
6 

12 

13 
33 
15 

13 
33 
17 

14 
15 
26 
16 

3 

As at 
31 March 2024 264.36 474.80 11.58 22.80 5.57 12.76 11.31 

803.18 1,017.75 468.29 43.74 0.09 165.7 l 
1,695.58 
2,498.76 0.10 199.10 

199.20 551.24 508.08 3.10 
1,062.42 982.67 24.66 8.96 129.78 17.74 1.53 71.80 
1,237.14 

2,299.56 
2,498.76 

As at 
31 March 2023 243.27 1.17 240.63 28.71 19.12 0.18 9.61 

542.69 472.41 102.11 38.24 0.08 31.05 
643.89 

1,186.58 0.10 130.34 
130.44 64.55 243.56 1.10 
309.21 518.30 21.85 0.08 I 00.30 29.72 0.57 12.29 63.83 
746.94 

1,056.15 
1,186.58 

for and on behalf of the B rd of Directors of 
Prabal Motors Private i itcd??ti"" 19140 

8/K (� 
John 1( Paul Francis K Paul 
Direclor Director DIN: 00016513 DIN: 00018825 Kochi 27 May 2024 



Prabal Motors Private Limited 
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2024 (All amounts in Indian Rupees million, except share data) 
Income Revenue from operations Other income 
Total income 

Expenses Purchases of stock-in-trade Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade Employee benefits expense Finance costs Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expense Impairment losses on financial assets Other expenses 
Total expenses 

Profit before tax Income tax expense Current tax Deferred tax (credit)/ charge 
Total tax expense 

Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income !rems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss Remeasurement of net defined benefit plan Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
Other comprehensive (loss)/ income for the year, net of income tax 

Total comprehensive income for the year 
Earnings per share (equity share of face value ofINR JO each) Basic (in INR) Diluted (in INR) 
Material accounting policies The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. As per our report of even date attached: for B S Rand Co Chartered Accountants Firm registration number: 1285 lOW 
Baby Paul Partner Membership No.: 218255 Kochi 27 May2024 Notes 

18 
19 

20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
32 
25 

26 
26 

28 

3 

Year ended 
31 March 2024 6,454.16 9.96 

6,464.12 6,272.88 (545.34) 268.73 124.19 92.23 (4.21) 161.43 
6,369.91 

94.21 37.14 (12.35) 
24.79 

69.42 (0.87) 0.21 
(0.66) 

68.76 6,942.09 6,942.09 Year ended 
31 March 2023 3,893.38 17.76 

3,911.14 3,646.42 (151.30) 147.23 45.69 40.44 2.68 73.36 
3,804.51 

106.63 33.05 1.30 
34.35 

72.28 0.78 (0.23) 
0.55 

72.84 7,283.54 7,283.54 for and on behalfofthe Board of Directors of 
Prabal Motors Private Limited 

Q?;? l9140

ffi

rv0/ 
John K Paul Director DIN: 00016513 Kochi 27May2024 Francis K Paul Director DIN: 00018825 



Prabal Motors Private Limited 
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2024 
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million, except share data) 

A. Equity share capital 

P:irticulnrs 

As at I April 2022 
Share issued during the year 
B:ilnncc as at 31 March 2023 
Share issued during the year 
Bnlnncc as nt 3J March 2024 

B 0 thcr cou,ty 

Notes 

12 

12 

Reserves and Surplus 

Particulars 
Retained 
earnings 

Balance as nt I April 2022 
Total comprehensive income for the year 
Profit for the year, nel of tax 
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 
Total comprehensive income 
Transferred to retnin�'CI earnings 
Bnlnncc as at 31 March 2023 
Total comprehensive income for the year 
Profit for the year, net of tax 
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 
Total comprehensive income 
Tmnsfcrred to retained e:nrnin�s 
Bain nee ns at 31st Mar 2024 

The description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows: 
a) Retained earnings
This represents ihe profits I losses of ihc Company tl:lmed till date, net of appropriations. 
b) llcmc:1surcmcnt of net defined benefit liubilily/ (nssct) 

57.30 

72.28 
-

72.28 0.55 
129.58 

69.42 -
69.42 
(0.66) 

198.34 

Equity sharc-s 

10,000 . 
10,000 

. 
10,000 

Items of other comprehensive 
income 

Remeasurement of net defined 
benefit liability/ (asset), net of 

fnx 
0.21 

-
0.55 
0.55 

(0.55) 
0.76 

-
-

(0.66) 
(0.66) 
0.66 
0.76 

Rcmeasurcmcntofncl defined benefit liability/ (asset) comprises actuarial gains and losses and return on plan assets (excluding interest income). 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached for B SR and Co 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm registration number: 128510W 

Baby Paul 
Partner 
Membership No.: 218255 

Kochi 
27 May 2024 

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Prabal Motors Private Lim!tcll 

p7;·1 
Jobn KPaul 
Director 
DIN: 00016513 

Kochi 
27May 2024 

Francis K Paul 
Director 
DIN: 00018825 

Amount 

0.10 
-

0.10 . 
0.10 

Total other equity attrillutnblc 
to equity holders of thr 

Company 

57.51 

72 28 
0.55 
72.84 

-
IJ0.34 -
69.42 
(0.66) 
68,76 

-
199.10 



Prabal Motors Private Limited 
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31st March 2024 
\All amounts in Indian Rupees mill ion) 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Profit before tax 
Adjustments: 
Finance costs 
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expense 
Impairment losses on financial assets 
Guarantee commission expense 
Liabilities/ provisions no longer required written back 
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability 
Other income 
Interest income 
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 
Working capital movements: 
Increase in inventories 
Increase in trade receivables 
Increase in loans and other financial assets and other assets 
Increase in liabilities and provisions 
Cash generated from operations 
Income taxes paid, net 
Net cash generated used in operating activities (A) 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Interest received 
Long term loans and advances 
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 
Acquisition of intangible assets 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 
Net cash used in from Investing activities (B) 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Interest paid 
Long-term borrowings availed 
Long-term borrowings repaid 
Short-term borrowings availed (net) 
Interest on lease liabilities 
Principal payment oflease liabilities 
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents al the end of the year (Refer to Note 9 - Cash and cash equivalents) 

Year ended 
31 March 2024 

94.21 

124.19 
92.23 
(4.21) 

(3.06) 

(0.91) 
(0.17) 

302.28 

(545.34) 
(361.98) 
(I 50.57) 

39.74 
(715.87) 

(42.43) 
(758.30) 

0.91 

(56.50) 
(0.17) 

0 36 
(55.40) 

(81.13) 
576.30 

(106.98) 
481.74 
(43.07) 

(7,67) 
819.19 

5.49 

38.24 

43.74 

Year ended 
31 March 2023 

106.63 

44.62 
40.44 

4.60 
0 25 

(4.10) 
0.78 

(0.51) 
(2.34) 
(0.04) 

190,33 

(248 24) 
(52.15) 
(15 67) 

52 55 
(73.18) 
(12.83) 
(86.01) 

1.64 
(8.74) 

(171.09) 

0.40 
(177.79) 

(30.27) 
8.71 

(20.80) 
366.74 
(14.14) 
(I 5.23) 
295,01 

31.21 

7.09 

38,31 



Prabal Moton Priva1e Llmiled 
Statemtnt or ca,h now, ror the year rnded JIit Man:h 2024 
(All amounts in Indian Rupees minion) 

Rttonclliniion nr finAnciAI Ullhililia for"l'l'ling rm of finaoclng ac:,hhl� tn ac:wnl.llrD' with fod AS i; 
r,niculall Ao II 

Non cwruu borr°"�P (including i:mmil rn.aiuritiaoflona tam borrowina,) 
Current -'1118' (Rcfa noto 13) 
!AK liAbil� (Rcfcrnoic.33) 

Particulan 

Non cunent �'lngs ([ndud'lng cldlcnt m.11uri1b of Jof\g term bcwro\\ 11gt) 
CUn"11 b<>m>winas (Rd'a""'c 13) 
LcJut ti'�biJilic:s (Rcrcr note 33) 

I Aprill013 
91.Sl 

491.03 
2GH2 

Aoal 
I Aprll 10?1 

103.92 
124.29 
129.53 

I.can IIVllikdl 
(n,plll�l. nd 

469.32 
481.74 

Loan availed/ 
crrmlltt),nt! 

(12.09) 
366.74 

Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect mc\hod as set out in� Ind AS 7 -Stalemcnt of C,ub Flows". 

The accompanyiDg notes form an integral part of the fUWlCill st&l.ements. 
As per our report of even date attached 

rriodfl.'I payment or 
lc,uc Uablli1y 

(7.111) 

Principal payment of 
!(11,t llubtlll\l 

(15.23) 

/orBSRandCo Chartered Accountants for and on behalfo(lhe Boord o( 
Prabal Moton Private L m led 

of 

Firm registration number: 128!HOW 

Baby Paul Porlner 
Membership No.: 21825$ 

Kochi 
27May2024 

a:;· ...
✓ JohnKJ I Dirtc-tor 

DIN: 00016513 

Kochi 
27 May 2024 

tnu:re.t payment on lui;c, 
fiablli17 

(4J.07) 

lntcrt:tl payftnt on leut 
SaJ1IIII 

(14.14) 

Direc1or 
DIN: 00018825 

Other noD c1.,h �hMJC!I 

ll�.(11; 

Olhcr non cauh changes 

16S26 

A>at 
JI Mardi 2024 

561.1, 
9n.76 
5l1.N 

Asat 
ll M1u:s-hW?J 

91.113 
491.03 
26H2 



Prabal Motors Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

Basis of preparation and material accounting policies 

1 Company overview 

Prabal Motors Private Limited ('the Company') was incorporated in 2006 as a Private Limited. Company. The Company is engaged in the 
business of sale and service of commercial vehicles, sale of spare parts and accessories. The Company is headquartered in Kochi, India and has 
oparations in Tamil Nadu and Maharashtm. Kerncon Equipment Private Limited is the Holding Company and Popular Vehicles and Services 
Limited is the Ultimate Holding Company. 

During the year ended 3 I March 2023, the Company had taken over the business including fixed assets and inventories, of Bharat Benz division 
ofVidarbha and Marathwada regions across seven locations from Provincial Trucking Private Limited. 

The registered address of the company is: 32/2571 H,II Floor, Kuttukaran Towers, Mamangalam, Palarivatton P.O., Ernakulam-682 025 
2 Basis of preparntion 

A. Statement of compliance 

TI1ese financial statements arc prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, notifa.>d under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act') as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

The financial statements were authori.scd for issue by lhe Company's, Board of Directors on 27 May 2024. 

Details of the Company's accounting policies including changes thereto are included in Note 3.

B. Functional nnd presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's functional currency. All amounts are presented in
Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated. 

C. Basis or measurement 
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and on accrual basis except for the following items: 
Items Measurement basis 
Net defined benefit (asset)/ linbility Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit 

obligations 

D. Use of estimates and judgements 

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may difler from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimales are recognized prospectively. 

Judgments 
Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the 
financial statements is included in Note 33 - Leases. 

Assumptions and estimation uncertainities 
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainities that have a significance risk of resulting in a material adjustment for the year ended 
3 I March 2024 is included in the following notes: 
Note 27 - recognition and measurement of provisions and contigencies: key assumplions about the likelyhood and magnitude of oulflow of 
resources; 
Note 31 - measurement of defined obligations: key actuarial assumptions; 
Note 32 - financial instruments. 

E Measurement of fair values 

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures requires the measurement of fair value, for both financial and non-financial 
assets and liabilities. The Company has an estabilished control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. 

Fair values are categorised into different levels in the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in valuation techniques as follows: 
-Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
-Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level I that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e, as prices) or
indirectly (i.e, derived from prices).
-Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on abservable market data (unobservable inputs). 

When measuring lhc fair value of an asset or a liability, the- Company uses observable mnrket data as for ns possible. If the inputs used to 
measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the lair value hierarchy, then the f-air value measurement is categorised 
in its entirety in the same lcvd of lhe fair value hierarchy as the lowest h:vcl input that is s!gnilicnnt to the entire mcasurumcnt. 

F Current/Non Current Classification 
Based on the time involved between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has 
identified twelve months as its operating cycle for dctcm1ining current and non curront classification of assets and liabilities in the Balance 
Shoot. 



Prabal Motors Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

3 Material accounting policies 

3.1 Property, plant und equipment 
A Recognition and measurement Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost of an item of prop�rty, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties nnd non-refundable purchase taxes, road taxes after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any dir1.-ctly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and remov.ing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributnble to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is Iocutcd. If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful Jives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss on disposal ofan item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, outstanding at each balance sheet date are showndate are shown under long-term loans and advances. The cost of fixed assets not ready for its intended use at each balance sheet date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of those fixed assets that necessarily take a substantial period to get ready for their intended use, are capitalized. Other borrowing c-osts are accounted as an expense in the statement of profit and loss. 
B Subsequent expenditure Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company. iii. Depreciation Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful livesusing the straight-line method, and is generally recognized in the profit or loss. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lease term or theuseful lives of assets, whichever is lower.Freehold land is not depreciated.The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:Compu1cr CQ1.1inment Useful Life (in years) Building Owned 60 Motor cars 8 Motor cycles and trucks 10 Office equipments 5 Plant and machinery 15-25Tools and equipment 5Electrical Equipments 10Furniture and fixtures 10 Computer equipment 3The useful life of items of property, plant and equipment 1s 111 hne with the Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013. Transition to Ind AS The cost property, plant and equipment at I April 2021, the Company's date of transition to Ind AS, was determined with reference to its carrying value recognized as per the previous GAAP (deemed cost), as at the date of transition to Ind AS. 3.2 Intangible Assets The cost of an intangible asset shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if it is probable that tuture economic benefits associated with the 11cm will Dow to the Company and the cost of item can be measured reliably. lntnngibles osseis are stated al cost less accumulntcd amortization and impairment. lntnngible assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, commencing from the date the nsset is available to the Company for its use and is included in amortization in profit or loss. The estimated useful lives are as follows: 

Computer cauioment Useful Life Software 3 Years Other i ntangibl� assets 2 Years Amortization method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted, if appropriate. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates All other expenditure is recognized in profit or loss as incurred. The cost of intangible asset not ready for its intended use at each balance sheet date is disclosed as intangible asset under developme:...n�t:;::::::::::::::�.___ o Ind AS perty, plant and equipment at I April 2021, the Company's date of transition to Ind AS, was determined withe recognized as per the previous GAAP (deemed cost), as at the date of transition to Ind AS.
it 

"14MA�"1 �� 



Prabal Motors Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

3 Material accounting policies (continued) 

3.3 Employee benefits 

Sharl-term employee benefits Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and arc expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably. 
Post-employment benefits 

Defined contribution plans A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payment is available. 
Defined benefit plans A definoo b1:ncfit plan is a post-employment bcnl!fit plan other thap a de lined contribution plan. The Company's net obi igation in respect of defined benefit plnn is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods and discounting that amount and deducting the foir value of any plan assets, if any. The calculalion of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited 10 the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan {'the asset ceiling'). Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI). The Company determines the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligalton at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. ·Net interest cxpunse and other expenses related to defined benefit plans arc recognized in profit or Joss. When the benefits of a plan arc changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service ('past service cost' or 'past service gain') or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or Joss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs. 
Other long term employee benefits The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employcment. Since the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve month after the end of the period in which the employees rendcrt'CI the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent acturial valuation using the projected unit credit method.Remeasurements are recognized in profit and loss in the period in which they arise. 

3.4 Provisions A provision is recognized it: as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constnictive obligation that can be estimated rclia•oly, and !1 is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the c.xpcctcd future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to sell le the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at 11 pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the lime value of money and the risks specific to the liability. ·n11l unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for. A contract is considered to be onerous whi:n the expected 1.>conomie benefits to b� dcrivcd by the Company from the contract aru lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the prcsen1 value of' the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Be.fore such a provision is made, the Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract. 



Prabal Motors Private Limited Notes to the financial statements (continued) 3 Material accounting policies (continued) 3.5 Revenue i. Sale of ProductsRevenue on sale of commercial vehicles, spare parts and accessories is recognized when the risk and rewards are transferred to the customer andis accounted net of goods and service tax and discounts, if any.Revenues arc recognised when collectabilityofthe resulting rcccivnble is reasonably assured.The Company generates revenue from sale of commercial vehicles, spare parts and accessories and other operating avenues. Under Ind AS 115,revenue is recognised when n customer obtains control of the goods or services.A contract liability is the ooligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has .received consideration (or an amountof consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfors goods or services to the customer, acontract liabillly is recogni_scd when lhe payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier), Contract liabilities are n:cognised asrevenue when tho Company pQrforms its obligation under the contractii. Rendering of servicesRevenues from servicing of commercial vehicles are recognised when services are rendered and related costs are incurred.iii. Commission, discount and incentive incomeCommission incomll is recognized when services are rende11.'<l and in accordance with the commission agn:ements.Discoums and incentive income is recognised when the services arc rendered and ns per lhe relevant scheme/ arrangement provided by themanufacturer. In respect of other heads of income, the Company follows the practice of recognising income on an accrual basis.
iv. Other income In calculating the interest income, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the assets (when the assets is not creditimpaired). Dividend income is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on the date on which the right to receive payment is established.
3.6 Inventories Inventories are carried at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises purchase price and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to its present location and condition. The cost is calculated on specific identification. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business. The comparison of cost and net realisable value of inventory is made on an item by item basis. The provision for inventory obsolescence is assessed annually and is provided as considered necessary. 
3. 7 Financial instrumentsi. Recognition and initial measurementTrade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilitiesarc initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.. A trade receivable without asignificant financing component is initially measured at the trnnsacLion price.A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability is initially measured at fair valueplus, for an item not at fair value 11:irough profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction cosls thnl nre directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.



Prabal Motors Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

3 Material accounting policies (continued) 

3.7 Financial instruments (continued} 
ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at either at amortized cost, FVTPL or fair value in other comprehensive income 
(FVOCI). 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model
for managing financial assets.
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in 
the investment's fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCl-equity investment). This election is made on an investment by investment basis. 
All financial assets not classified as measured al amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. Th is includes all 
derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the 
requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch 
that would otherwise arise. 

Financial assets: Business model assessment 
The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at investment level because this best 
reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The information considered includes: 
- the stated policies and objectives for each of suoh investments and the operation of those policies in practice.
- the risk that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model} and how those risk are
managed 
- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about the future sales 
activity 

Transfer of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for dercognition are not considered sales for this purpose, 
consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the assets. 

f'inancial nsse1s that arc held for trnding or arc managed and whose perfonnance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL. 
Fl11a11clal assets: Assesm11ml whether contractual r:1u·/,jlows are solely paym1mfs ofprl11cipal and infere�·t 
for the purposes of this assessment, 'p(incipal' is defined as the fair value of the financinl asset on initial recognition. 'Interest' is defined as 
consideration for the time value of money and for lhc credit risk associated with the principnl amount outstanding during a particular pcnod of 
liml.l and for other bnsic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin. 
ln assessing whether the contractual cash nows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the contractual tl.lnns of the 
instrument. This includes assessing wht--ther the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual 
cash nows such that it would not· meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers: 
- contingent events Lhut would chnngc the :imount or liming of cash flows;
- terms that may adjust the contraclUII.I coupon ra.tc, including variable interest rate features; 
- prepayment and extension features; and
- terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g non-recourse features).
Financial assets: Subseq11e11t measurement and gains and losses 
Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are 
FVTPL recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 
Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The amortized cost is 
amortised cost reduced by impainnent losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in profit 

or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Equity investments These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in profit or loss unless lhe 
atFVOCJ dividend clearly represents a recoveiy of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in 

OCI and are not reclassified to statement of profit or loss. 



Prabal Motors Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

3 Material accounting policies (continued) 

3.7 Financial instruments (continued) 
Flm111cinl linbi/1/ies: Clc,ss/jic«tio11, subsequent meas11reme11t and gaius and losses Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest· method. Jntc:rest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de recognition is also recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

iii. De-recognition
Financial assetsThe Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers therights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assetare transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retaincontrol of the financial asset.If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of therisks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognized.
Financial liabilities The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantiallydi!Tc:rent. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified tcnns is recognized at lbir value. The difference between the carryingamount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in profit or loss.

iv. orr settingFinancial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when. the Companycurrently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settlethe liability simultaneously.
3.8 Impairment 

i) Impairment of financinl instrumentsThe Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortized cost.At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are credit impaired. A financial asset is 'creditimpaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit lossesare the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which theCompany is exposed to credit risk.
Measurement of expected credit lossesExpected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects toreceive).
Presentation of nllowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.
Write-offThe gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off(cithcr partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.This is generally the case when the Company determines that lhti debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficientcash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write off.



Prabal Motors Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

3 Material accounting policies (continued) 

3.8 Impairment (continued) 

ii) Impairment of non- financial assets 
The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether 
there is any indication of impainnent. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. 
For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU 
represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. 

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual osset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is 
based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present voluc using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset). 

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognized in profit or loss. 

In respect of assets for which impainnent loss has been recognized in prior periods, the Company reviews at ench reporting date whether there is 
any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is mnde on.ly 10 the e,ctent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. 

3.9 Leases 

i. Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease 
At the inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease. At the inception or on reassessment of the 
arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease 
and those for other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. 

ii. Company as a lessee 
The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components of the contract and 
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the 
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components. 

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. 
The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the Initial measurement of the lease l.iability adjusted for 
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, pl11s any initial direct costs Incurred and an 
estimate of costs 10 be incurred by the lessee in dismnntling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which 
it is located. The right-of-use assets i's subsequently measured at cost less an)' accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment loss"'5, if any
and adjusted for any remcasuremenl of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets Is dcprcoiatcd using the s1rn1gh1-line method from the
commencement dote over the shorter of lease Lenn or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets ore 
detennined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any 
indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and Joss. 

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. 
The lease payments arc discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily 
determined, lhe Company uses incremental borrowing rate. The lcosc payments shall include fixed payments. variable lease payments, residual 
value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably cenain 10 exercise that option and payments of pcnulti1:s 
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an oplion to terminate the tease. 

The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying 
amount to reflect the lease payments mode and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect 
revised in-substance fixed lease payments. The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as 
an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit· and loss depending upon the nature of modification. Where the carrying amount of
the eight-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any
remaining amount of the re-measurement in the statement of profit and loss. 
The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 
months or Jess. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 



Prabal Motors Private Limited 
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3 Material accounting policies (continued) 

3.9 Leases (continued) 
iii. Company as a lessorAt the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. The Company recogniseslease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight- line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor's net investment in the lease. Whenthe Company is an intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the leaseclassification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If ahead lease is a short term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease. If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

3.10 Recognition of interest income or interest expense Interest income or expense is recognized using the effective interest method. The 'effective interest rate' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or the amortized cost of the financial liability. In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortized cost of the liability. 
3.11 Income tax Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in the statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. 

i. Current taxCurrent tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable orreceivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or receivedafter considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted bythe reporting date.Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously. 
ii. Deferred taxDeferred income tax asset and Jiabilty are recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitiesfor financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognized in respect of carriedforward tax losses and tax credits.Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognizes a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax assets -unrecognized or recognized, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognized/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realized.Deferred tax is mcasun.:d at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the roporting date. The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously. 
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3 Material accounting policies (continued) 

3.12 Earnings/loss per share 

The basic earnings/loss per share is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) after tax for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average number of shares considered for deriving 
basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive 
potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period unless issued at a later date In 
computing dilutive earning per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive i.e. which reduces earnings per share or increases loss per 
share are included. 

3.13 Cash-flow statement 

Cash !lows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature 
and any deferrals. or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and 
financing activities of the Company arc segregated. 

3.14 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less which 
are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value 

3.lS Contingent liabilities and assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation 
that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the 
amount cannot be made, is termed as a contingent liability. The existence of a contingent liability is disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements 

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed. 

3.16 Changes in material accounting policies 

a) Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction
The company has adopted Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to Ind AS 12) from 
1 April 2023.The amendments narrow the scope of initial recognition exemption to exclude transactions that give rise to cqunl and offsetting
differences, eg: lease and decommissioning liabilities. For lease and decommissioning liabilities, an entity is required to recognize the associated
deferred tax assets and liabilities from the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognized as an 
adjustment to retained earnings or other components of equity at that date. For all other transactions, an entity the amendments to transactions 
that occur on or after the beginning of the earl icst period presented. 

The company did not have impact from adoption of this amendment. 

b) Material accounting policy information
The Company adopted the Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to Ind AS 1) from l April 2023. Although the amendments did not
result in any changes in the accounting policies themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information disclosed in the financial 
statements. The amendments require the disclosure of "material rather than significant accounting policies". The amendments also provide
guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies, assisting entities to provide useful, entity specific accounting
policy information that users need to understand other information in the financial statements

3.17 Recent accounting pronouncements 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. There are no new standards or amendments to the existing standards that are notified impacting 
the financial statements of the Company. 
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Prabal Motors Pri.-ate Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million) 

4 Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress 

Particulars Buildings (#) Furniture and
fixtures 

Gross Block 
Balance at I April 2022 100.44 12.43 
Additions/( transfers) 61.26 17.70 
Disposals 
Balance at 31 March 2023 161.70 30.13 
Balance at I April 2023 161.70 30.13 
Additions/( transfers) 26.81 2.81 
Disposals 
Balance at 31 March 2024 188.51 32.94 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Balance at I April 2022 11.72 9.54 
Depreciation for the year 2.77 1.47 
Disposals 
Balance at 31 March 2023 14.49 11.01 
Balance at 1 April 2023 14.49 11.01 
Depreciation for the year 14.39 2.20 
Disposals 
Balance at 31 March 2024 28.88 13.21 

Net carrying amount 
At 31 March 2024 159.63 19.73 
At 31 March 2023 147.21 19.12 

Electrical Plant and Tools and 
eguiement machinery �uiement 

4.00 JO.OJ 16.85 
4.43 12.76 20.09 

8.43 22.77 36.94 
8.43 22.77 36.94 
2.23 1,23 8.73 

10.66 24.00 45.67 

1.63 5.11 13.20 
0.66 I.14 4.14 

2.29 6.25 17.34 
2.29 6.25 17.34 
0.78 1.43 5.66 

3.07 7.68 23.00 

7.59 16.32 22.67 
6.15 16.52 19.60 

·,.

Motorcar Motor Cycle & Computer Office Total Capital work- Total 
Trucks Eguiement eguiement (A) in -ero!l;CSS (B) (A+B) 

9.62 7.10 7.14 2.36 169.96 2.65 172.61 
1.62 11.37 3.46 10.61 143.31 1.17 144.48 
0.42 0.42 2.65 3.07 

10.82 18.47 10.60 12.97 312.85 1.17 314.02 
10.82 18.47 10.60 12.97 312.85 1.17 314.02 
1.59 5.80 2.72 2.36 54.28 0.59 54.87 
0.44 0.17 0.61 1.76 2.37 

11.97 24.10 13.32 15.33 366.52 366.52 

5,60 1.51 4.82 1.62 54.74 54.74 
0.91 I.23 1.59 0.97 14.89 14.89 
0.05 0.05 0.05 
6.46 2.74 6.41 2.59 69.58 69.58 
6.46 2.74 6.41 2.59 69.58 69.58 
1.03 2.53 2.45 2.52 33.00 33.00 
0.41 0.0) 0.42 0.42 
7.08 5.26 8.86 5.11 102.16 102.16 

4.89 18.84 4.46 10.22 264.36 264.36 
4.36 15.73 4.18 10.38 243.27 1.17 244.44 

During the previous year, in terms of agreement dated I January 2023, the Company has taken over the business, including Fixed Assets and Inventory, as a wholesale distributor of vehicles, spare parts/ accessories of Bharat Benz division - Vidarbha and 
Marathwada region across seven locations from Provincial Trucking Private Limited, Maharashtra 

# Include buildinl!S constructed on leasehold land 

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 

Gross block I Net block Gross block I Net block 

Buildings 188.s1 I 159.63 16uo I 147.21 



Prabal Motors Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements ( continued) (All amounts in Indian Rupees million) 
4 Property, pl_ant and equipment and capital work-in-progress (continued) 

b) Ageing of capital work-in-progressCapital work-in-progress of pervious year represents expenditure towards construction of new workshops/ service centres.
As at 31 March 2024 

Amount in CWIP for a period of Description 
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Yenrs 2-3 Years

Projects in progress . - -
Projects temporarily suspended - - -

As at 31 March 2023 
Amount in CWIP for a period of Description 

Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years
Projects in progress 1.17 . 
Projects tcmporariJy suspended - -

c) Details of capital work-in-progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its orginal planThere are no capital work-in-progress projects that are overdue or have exceeded their original planned costs.
d) For details of property, plant and equipment pledged, Refer Note 13 -

-

More Than 3 Yeurs 
. 
-

More Than 3 Year's 
-
-



Prabal Motors Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) (All amounts in Indian Rupees million) 

5 Intangible assets 

Particulars 

Reconciliation of carrying amount Balance at I April 2022 Additions Disposals Impairment loss 
Balance at 31 March 2023 Balance at 1 April 2018 Amortisation for the year Balance at 1 April 2023 Additions Disposals Impairment loss 
Balance at 31 March 2024 Balance at I Oct 2023 Additions Disposals 
Balance at 31 December 2023 

Amortisation Balance at I April 2022 Amortisation for the year Disposal Impairment loss 
Balance at 31 March 2023 Balance at I April 2023 Amortisation for the year Disposal Impairment loss 
Balance at 31 March 2024 Balance at I Oct 2023 Additions Disposals 
Balance at 31 December 2023 

Net carrying amount 
At 31 March 2024 
At 30 September 2023 
At 31 March 2023 

Software 0.51 6.61 
7.12 5.37 3.10 7.12 0.18 
7.30 
7.30 

7.30 

0.36 0.58 
0.94 
0.94 2.31 
3.25 
3.25 0.57 
3.81 

4.05 
4.06 
6.19 

Other intangible 
assets 12.39 20.00 

32.39 6.51 3.16 32.39 
32.39 
32.39 

32.39 

6.20 3.68 
9.88 
9.88 10.03 4.95 

24.86 
24.86 2.52 
27.38 7.53 7.53 
22.52 

Total (A) 

12.90 
26.61 

39.51 I J.88 6.26 
39.51 0.18 
39.69 
39.69 

39.69 

6.56 4.26 
10.82 
10.82 12.34 4.95 
28.11 
28.1 I 3.09 
31.20 

11.58 11.58 
28.71 



Prabol Motors Privote Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million) 

6 Other assets 
Non-current 
Unsea1red, considf!red good 
Capital advances 
Prepayments 

Current 
Un.sec11red, ·considered good 
Prepayments 
Advance to staff 
Balance with statutory/ government authorities 
Payment to vendors for supply of goods and services 

The Company has not given any loan to their directors during the period ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 

7 Inventories 

(Valued al lower of cosl and rttalisab/e value) 
New vehicles 
Spares and lubricants 

Less: Provision for obsolete inventory 

As at 
3 l March 2024 

0.41 
10.90 
11.31 

3 45 
0 75 

152 04 
9 47 

165,71 
177.02 

824.87 
196.30 
1021.17 

(3.42) 
1017,75 

Asal 
3 l March 2023 

3 55 
6,06 
9.61 

1.39 
0 16 

21 15 
8 35 

31.05 
40.66 

318.22 
160 78 
479.00 
(6.59) 

472.41 

Closing stock includes value of goods in transit of new vehicles for Rs. 180,88 million (31 March 2023: Rs. 125.57 million), spares and lubricants for Rs. 15.62 million (31 March 2023: Nil) 
8 Trade receivables 

Current 
U11secured 
considered good 
considered doubtful 

Allowances for expected credit loss (Refer Note 32) 
Net !rode receivable! 

For details of trade receivables from related parties, Refer Note 35 
Trade receivables ageing schedule 

/\Int 31 March 2024 

i)Undlsputcd trade rccoivabl� - considered good 
ii)Undisputtd trade receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk 
iii)Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired 

As ol JI March 2023 
Particulars 

l!)Undisputcd trade recetvablcs- considered good 
ii)UndispUlcd trade receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk 
iiiJUndisputcd trade receivables - credit impaired 

Not Due Less than 6 months 
311.67 148.48 

1.50 
311.67 149.98 

Not Due Less than 6 months 
94.74 

1,26 
102.00 

The Company's exposure to credit and currency risks and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in Note 32. 

9 Cash and cash equivalents 
Balances in current accounts 
Cash on hand 
Cash and cash equivalents in balance sheet 
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 

10 Bank balan= other than cash and cash equivalents 
Balance with banks held as margin money 

The margin money has been kept with banks for the purposes of opening current accounts. 
11 Other financial assets 

Non .. currcnt 
Unsecured, considt!red good 
BnlruK'C IYilh Lire Insurance Corporation Gratuity Fund, net ( Refer note 31) 
Rem and other deposits 

6 months - 1 year 
8,14 

1.32 
9.46 

6 months - 1 year 
3.55 

1.38 
4.93 

468.29 
7.66 

475.95 

(7.661 
468.29 

More than J year 

4.85 
4.85 

More than 1 year 
3.81 

3 23 
7.04 

42.87 
0 87 

43.74 
43.74 

0.09 
0.09 

2280 
22.80 

102,10 
11,87 

113.97 

(11.87) 
102.IJ 

Total 
468 29 

7.66 
475.95 

Total 
102 10 

11.87 
113.98 

37.89 
0.35 

38.24 
38.24 

0.08 
0.08 

2.30 
16 82 
19.12 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million, except share data) 

12 Equity share capital 
Authorised 
Equity shares ofINR JO each 
Redeemable Preference Shares INR IO each 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up 
Equity shares ofJNR JO eachji,/ly paid-up 
At the beginning of the year 
Add: Additions during the year 
At the end of the year 

As at 31 March 2024 
Number of shares 

30,000 
20,000 
S0,000 

10,000 

10,000 

Amount 

There has been no movement in share capital during the previous two financial years 

(a) Terms nnd rights nttachcd to equity shares 

0.30 
0.20 
0.50 

0.10 

0.10 

As al 31 March 2023 
Number of shores 

30,000 
20.000 
30,000 

10,000 

10,000 

Amount 

0,30 
0.20 
0.30 

0.10 

0,10 

TI11: Compnny has n single class of equity shan,s. All the equity shnrus rank equnlly w.ith regnrd to dividends Md shore in the Compnny's rcsidunl nsscts. The equity slmrcs nru entitled 
10 rccoh·e dividend as decl:m:d from time 10 time, The votiug righis ofan cqui1y slum:.boldur on n poll (1101 on •how o(honds) arc in proponion to shnre of poid-up equity eapi1nl of 
the Company. Voting righls cannol be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other SWl\$ pre$Cntly pa)•nble hove not been paid. Failure 10 pny nny 11J11oun1 cillh:d up on tho 
shares mny lend to the forfoiturc of shares. On winding up oflltc Company, the holders of the equity sh=s will be cnti1led to receive the residual nsscu of the Compruiy, rcn1ai11ing 
�ncnhc distribution of all prolcrcntin.1 amounts in proponion 10 Oto nwnbcrofeqwty shores hold. 

(b) Shsres held by holding compaoy/ ultimate holding company 
As at JI March 2024 As at JI March 2023 

Number of shares 
9,999 

Amount Number of shares 
9,999 

Amount 
Keracon Equipments Private Limi1ed - Holding company 
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited- Ultimate Holding company 

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company 

Equity shares of INR /0 each/111/y paid up held by 

a) Keracon Equipments Private Limited - Holding company 

(d) Details of shares held by promoters al the end of the year 

Name of the promoters 

a) John K, Paul 

9,999 

As at 31 March 2024 
Number of shares 

9,999 

As al 31 March 2024 
Number of shares 

(e) Details of bonus shares issued during the five years immediately preceding the bolnncc sheet date, 

0.10 

0.10 

% holding 
in the class 

99.99% 

% holding 
in the class 

0.01% 

The Company has not issued bonus shares during O,e period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date. 

9,999 

As al 31 March 2023 
Number of shares 

9,999 

As ut 31 March 2023 
Number of shares 

(I) Details of buyback and bonus shares issued for consideration other than for cash in the five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date. 

0.10 

0.10 

% holding 
in the class 

99,99% 

% holding 
in the class 

0.01% 

The Company bas not bought back any class of equity shares nor has there been any issue for consideration olher than for cash during the period of five years immediate preceding the 
balance sheet date. There has been no change in shareholding pattern in the currenl year compared lo the previous year 



Prubnl Motors Privnte Limited 
Notes to the linoncial statemenls (conlinued) 
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million) 

13 Borrowings 

Non•currenl 
Secured 
Term loans from banks 
Redeemable preference shares 
Vehicle loans from financial jnstitutions 
Unsecured 
Loan from related parties (Refer Note 35) 

Currenl 

Seel/red 
Cash credit and overdraft facilities from banks 
Short term loan from banks 
Current maturities of long-term borrowings 

Tot.ul borrowings 

Information about the Company's exposure to interest rate and liquidity risks are included in Note 32� 

• l DI 'I c :11 Jo stc11rat1cs. ttrm.s :an con 1 onso d di I fb orrow1nu ,rum nn on( llllint't:I 1nst1tul10111 b ks I Ii • 1· 

Nnture of borrowings Security terms 

Long term loan, r,om banks - secured Primory: Exclusive FitSt Cluirge by way ofHypoll1ccotion of entire Fi«d Assets 
nnd other items created out of Bank Finance Collateral: Secured by Equitabl, 
Monll1'l)o over 63 86 Cents of Land and showroom building under Sy. 
No:109/8 (Re Sy No: 37/8A &. 37/8B) of Vengeri \'illage, Molap:uumbu, 
Calicut in the name of Kuttukarn.n Trading Venture. Further it 1s secured by 
Corponne Guarantee of holding company Keracon Equipments Private L1mi1cd 
:md Mis Kuttukaran Trading Venture 

Lon& term loans from banks -secured Gu•rontecd by NCOTC Md Socond. charge on oll primory ond collaternl 
sccurilics available for the existing facilities with us, as listed above. 

Leng term loans from banb -secured Primory: Hypothcc,tion of movable fixed assets acquired for 
showrooms/,ervico centres al Hosur, Karur. Palladam, and Nnn10kk,L 
Collatcrnl· I) EM of 308 cents of land and residential building ,n SY No-866 ol 
Ollukkara Village, Thrissur owned by Mr, John K Paul valued at Rs26 tOCr; 
Lnnd: Rs.25.88Cr and Building: Rs.0.22Cr] (DOV 03.11.2020) also charged 10 
tho limits of Popular Vehicles and Services Ltd, 2) Unencumbered Movable 
Fixed Assets of the Company. 

Long term loans from b,nks - secured 100% guaranteed by NCOTC and Second charge on all primary and collnternl 
s:ecurilic.s available for the existing facilities with us, as listed above� 

Long term louns rrom banks - secured Paripossu choigc on nil current assets along with fcdcrnl Bank except for stock 
fUncicd by other IF bankers and excluding the vehicles funded by other HP 
Banker. Paripassu charge on ;ill current assets along with Federal Bank cxcop1 
for stock funded by other IF bankers and excluding the vehicles funded by othi!r 
HP Banker, Extension of Equitable Mortgage over following properties I 
Lnnd & Building situated at S. No. 136/13/A, 136117/A, 136117/B, Villoge-
Ed•p•lly South, Limits- Cochin, Taluk-Kanayannur, DistrictCErnakulam, 
KorolJ1- Pin : 682024 Owned by Kuttukaran Trading Venture. 2. Land & 
Building situated at S. No. 136/8/2 & 3, 140/1 & 140/2 (Re. Sy, No. I00/ 4-3, 4-
4, 4-5, 4-6, 4-7,4-8,4-9 and Re Sy No. 111/1 Re Sy Block No 5), Vill4gc• 
Pallichal, Limits-Pallichal Panchayath, Taluk-Neyyattinkara, District• 
Thlruvononthnpuram. KeralaPin 695121. owned by Kuttukaran Homes 
LLP. (Land Area- 58.42 Ares (37 03+21,39)) is 
equol to 144.30 Cents. Secured by personal guarantee of Naveen Philip, John 
Paul and Francis Paul. Further tt is secured by Corpornle Guarantee ofl\olding. 
company Kutlukaran Homes LLP and Kuttukaran Trading Venture 

Vehicle Loan - ,-ec:urcd Scoured by hype1hcca1ion of Yehl las purchased using the fund 

Related Party Lean • uru;ccurcd No Se�urily. Lender is the director of borrower 

Roloted Party Loon - unsecured No Security. Lender is the ultimrue hotdmy company ofbortO\\'C!f 

Asat As at 
31 M•rch 2024 31 Mnrch 2023 

11.43 28.60 
0 .20 0,20 
3 86 

535.75 35.75 
551.24 64.55 

13,91 
958 85 491 03 

9.91 27-28 
982.67 518.30 

1,533.9) 582.85 
l.533.91 582,85 

Tenure Asut As nl 
31 March 202� 31 March 2023 

48 months - 14 94 

49 months 3.54 7.41 

72 months . 11 00 

48 months 20.75 

60 months I 5 47 . 

36 months 6,12 1.77 

Refer note below 35.75 35.75 

60 months 500 00 



Prnbul Motors Private LimiteU 
Notes to the financial slotements (continued) 
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million) 

13 Borrowings (continued) 

uJ Details of securities, terms und conditions of borrowings from books and finuociul institutions (continued) 

Short term loon from banks - secured Prim.sty: Hypothecation of entire current assets c-xcluding stock and re-eeiwblC$ 
finnnctd by inventory funding and receivable created out of sale of same,, 

Fur1hcr secured by peraonal guarantees of John K Paul and Francis K Poul, 
dircc1ors: of the Company and Naveen Philipa Further it 1s secured by Corporate 
GuBrnn1cc of holding company Keracon Equipments Private Limited 

On Demand 968.77 492,68 

a) Borrowings from banks/ financial institutions carry interest rates from 8% to J 0% per annum and loan from Popular Vehicles & Services Ltd has an interest rate of 8.65%, which is in line 
with the market rate. No interest is payable on loan from directors and the same is not repayable within l year from the date of Balance Sheet_ 

b) The Company has availed working capital facilities from b:mb on the basis of security of current assets and have submitted quarterly returns of the same to the bankers. Following is the 
summary of variance between such returns and books ofac.eounLL 

As ot 31 Morch '024 . 
Amount as per Amount Reported in 

Quarter ended NnmcofBnnk Particulars the Qunterly Variunce 
Books Statement 

30 September 2023 Federal Bank Inventory-New Vehicle 798.02 794 91 3 11 
31 December 2023 Fcdo111I Bnnk lnvcn1orv-New Vehicle 783.48 772.0G 11.42 
JO Seotember 2023 Fcdiml Bank T111de Rccciv.iblcs 316.31 300.2.S 16,06 
3 I December 2023 Fl.'dcrnl Bonk Trndc Recciv:sblts 533.19 499.58 33,61 

As at 31 Mnrch 2023 
The Company has availed working capital facilities from banks on the basis of security of current assets and have submitted quarterly returns of current assels and current liabilities to the 
bankers. The quartery returns are matching with the books of accounts 

c) The Company has utilised the loans availed for the purpose it was availed. 



Prabal Motors Private Limited 
Notes to the fin11nciol stotemen1s (continued) 
(All amow,ts in Indian Rupees million) 

14 Other financial liabilities 
Current 

IS 

16 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 
Accrued salaries .ind benefits 
Dues to other creditors for expenses and olhers 

The Company's exposure lo currency and liquidity risk related to the above financial liabilities is disclosed in Note 32 

Provisions 
Non-current 
Pro1•isio11for employee benefits 
Net defined benefit liability - Gratuity 
Compensated absences 

Current 
Pr01·isio11/or emplo.we benefits 
Compensated absences 

Other lmbilities 
Current 
Contract liabilities 
Statutory dues payables 

Movement in controct liobilities 
Opening balance at the beginning of the year 
Less : Revenue recognised during the year 
Add: Additions to advances from customers during the year 
Closing balance at the end of the year 

As ol 
31 Murch 2024 

1774 

17.74 

0.69 
2.41 
3.10 

l.53 
1.53 
4.63 

53 42 
18.38 
71.80 
71.80 

47 92 
(47 92) 
53.42 
53.42 

As al 
3 I Murch 2023 

I 66 
4-76 

23.30 
29.72 

I.ID 
I.ID 

0 57 
0.57 
1.67 

47.92 
15.91 
63.83 
63.83 

66.95 
(19,03) 

47.92 

The contra.ct liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from the customers for lhe purchase of vehicles. This will be recognised as revenue as and when lhe Company meet the 
performance obligation by delivering the vehicles. 

17 Trode puyobles 
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Trade payable ageing schedule 

As at 31 Morch 1024 

Parlicul.1rs 

i)MSME 
ii) Others 
iii) Disputed Dues-MSME 
iv) Disputed Dues-Others 
v) Unbilled dues 

As n131 Mord, 1023 

Partic11lars 

i)MSME 
ii) Others 
iii) Disputed Dues-MSME 
iv) Disputed Dues-Others 
v) Unbilled dues 

AJI trade payables are 'current". 

Less than 
I vr:.r 

8.92 
109.70 

19_7) 
138.JS 

Less 1han 
I i•t:tr 

0.08 
99_53 

99.71 

The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to lrade payables is disclosed in Note 32 

8.96 
129 77 
!38.73 

Outslanding for the following periods from lhe date of payment 

1-2 yHrs 

0.03 
0.06 

O.o9 

2-3 years 

0.19 

D.19 

More than 
J Yellr.S 

0.10 

0.10 

OuUlonding foT the following periods from the date or poyment 
1-2 years 2-3 years More than 

Jyc•n 

O.S3 0.03 0.11 

O.Sl O.OJ O.ll 

0,08 
100 30 
JOO.JS 

Total 

8.95 
110.05 

19 73 
lJS.73 

Total 

0 08 
100 .J0 

Disclosures as required under lhe Micro, Small ond Medium Enterprises Development Ac11 2006 ("the Ac1 11J based on the informn1ion nveiluble with the Compony ure given below: 

The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year 
The interest due on the principal remaining outstanding as at the end of the year 
The amount ofin1crettpald under tho /\cl, lllong with the amount, of the p•ymcnt mode be)'ond the appointed day during the year 
1110 ,mount of intcrO!I duo �nd p>yAblo for 1he period of delay in making p3ymcn1 (which have been paid but 
bc)'Ond tho oppoinlod day during the ycor) but without adding 11le interest sp«lficd w,dcr tho Act 
The amount oflnterest accrued and remafoing unpaid at the end of the year 
The amoum of runhcr interest remaining due and pay.iDlc- o.ven in the succeedln!} )'Cll.fS, until such date when the 
interest dues u Qbove are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose or Jinllowance as a deductible 
c pc.ndilurc under the A-ct 

8.95 0,08 
0 01 



Prabel Motors Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million) 

18 Revenue from operations 
Sale of products 
Sales of new vehicles 
Sale of spare parts and accessories 

Sale of services 

Other operating revenues 
Income from schemes and incentives 
Finance and insurance commission 
Other operating income 

Reconciliation of revenue from sale of products and services 
Gross revenue 
Less: Discount allowed 

(A) Disseggregate of revenue information

Year ended Year ended 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

5,260.54 3,204 30 
865,78 539.83 

6,126.32 3,744.13 

179.84 93.22 
6,306.16 3,837.35 

131.08 51,87 
7.37 4.16 
9.55 

147.99 56.03 
6,45,4.16 3,893.38 

6,597.16 3,910.35 
291.00 73.00 

6,306.16 3,837.35 

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers for the below years ended by offerings and contract type, The Company believe that 
this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainity of our revenues and cashflows are effected by industry, market and other economic 
factors. 

Particulars 

Revenue by contract type 
Fixed price 

(B) Contract balances 
The following table provides information about trade receivables and contract liabilities from contract with customers.

Particulars 

Trade rcceivnbl�s 
Contract liabilities (advance from customers) 

(CJ Transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations 

Year ended 
31 March 2024 

6,454.16 
6,454.16 

Year ended 
31 March 2024 

468.29 
53.42 

Year ended 
31 Murch 2023 

3,89338 
3,893.38 

Year ended 
3 I March 2023 

102.11 
47 92 

The following table includes revenue expected to be recognised in the future related to performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially satisfied) at the 
reporting date. 

Particulars 

Within I year 
More than 3 years 
Closing balance 

19 Other income 

Interest income based on effective interest rate 
Fixed deposits with banks 
Rent deposits 

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 
Liabilities no longer required written back 
Other non-operating income 

20 Purchases of stock-in-trade 
New vehicles 
Spares, lubricants and accessories 

21 Change io inventories of stock-in-trade 
Opening inventory 
Closing inventory• 

*Closing im•e/11ory ofprevious year does not contain inventory of goods in transit. 

Year ended 
31 March 2024 

53.42 

53.42 

0,04 
0.87 
0 I 7 
3.06 
5.82 
9.96 

5,538.19 
734.69 

6,272.88 

472.41 
1,017.75 
(545.34) 

Year ended 
31 March 2023 

47,92 

47.92 

1.64 
0.70 
0.04 
3.96 

11.42 
17.76 

3,135.72 
510.70 

3,646.42 

I 95.34 
346.64 

(151.30) 



Prabel Motors Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million) 

22 Employee benefits expense 
Salaries and allowances 
Contribution to provident and other fund (Refer Note 31) 
Staff welfare expense 

23 Finance costs 
Interest on bank borrowings 
Bank charges 
Interest on lease liabilities (Refer Note 33) 
Other borrowing costs 

24 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 
Amortisation and impairment on intangible assets 
Depreciation on right-of-use asset (Refer Note 33) 

25 Ott,er expenses 
Rent 
Advertising and sales promotion 
Consumables 
Repairs and maintenance: 

Plant and machinery 
Building 
Others 

Power, water and fuel 
Travelling and conveyance 
Housekeeping and security and other contract charges 
Office expenses 
Communication 
Pre-delivery inspection charges 
Rates and taxes 
Transportation charges 
Bank charges 
Insurance 
Legal and professional (also refer note 29) 
Commission 
Bad debt written off 
Commission on corporate guarantee 
Expcndilurc on corpomte social responsibility ('CSR') (refer note (i) below) 
Miscellaneous expenses 

Details of Corporate social responsibility expenditure 
(i) Gross amount required to be spent during the year 
(ii) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 
(iii) Amount spent during the year on ; 

Construction/ acquisition of asset 
On purposes other than above 

Unspent amount in relation to: 
Ongoing project 
Other than ongoing project 

(iv) (Shortfall)/ Excess at the end of the year 
(v) Details of related party transactions (Refer note 35) 

. Where a provision· is made with respect to a liabilily incurred by entering into a contractual obligation, the 
(vi) movements in the provision during the period/year should Ix: shown scpanllely 

For the year ending 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023
(vii:Nature of CSR activities: 

a) Payment to Prime minister national relieffund 
b) Skill development 
c) Education 
d) Rural development 

Year ended Year ended 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

232.01 130.41 
17.90 8.89 
18.82 7.94 

268.73 147.23 

79.30 27 51 
2.76 

43.07 14.14 
1.82 1.28 

124.19 45.69 

33.00 14.89 
17.29 4.26 
41.94 21.29 
92.23 40.44 

0.28 0.00 
10.85 7.00 
2.53 0.31 

O.o2
5.20 2.27 

14.86 9.36 
9.65 5.11 

16.93 10.51 
48.58 14.12 
3.30 4.25 
3.16 1.34 
7.01 3 98 
4.47 0.85 

12.18 3 17 
3.05 
4.14 3.19 
2.51 1.50 
0.81 

1.92 
2.02 0.25 
1.21 0.54 
8.69 3.65 

161.43 73.36 

1.21 0.53 
1.21 0.54 

1.21 0.54 

0.01 
1.21 

NA NA 

0 37 0.54 
0.84 



Prabol Motors Privele Limited 
Notes to lhe fin:incial statements (continued) 
(All omowtls in lndi::m Rupees million) 

26 Income tans 
Net income tox ossels/ (li1bi1ities) at the end of the yeor 

(i) Tu expense recoenised in statement or pr-ofit a.nd ta.1:11 

Cuncnl .._, (including MAT) 
Oefomd I.ix charge 
Ta.i CIOfG.stl 

(ii) Amount r�tognir.td in other comprchttnsh·c income 

Rtmi:::111SW'C'mcn1 oflht ntl dtfmed bc:,-clit plARS 

liii> Reto·ncUiuion of dficc1h·c: tu rate 

Profit before laxs:s 
Eniacted lax ralcs in India 
Ta.-< using lhc Compan)JS sLDlulory la'{ rote 
Income et dilTercnliaJ ralc - long term capjtaJ gain 
On account or ch:inge in tnx rote 
Olhcr permanent differences 
Ti1t.-,:c.� 
6.ITcc1h1:iu,"t:r.lit.c 

Recognised deferred tu essefs ood (liabilities) 
fi) Oefor.rcd tn DSSttJ and U11bUilit!.11 arc oJlributllblr. u, 1he £0ll0'1'\in•: 

Panicu1ari 

Otfu�fl u,.� t1sset, un nccoflnl of: 
lmp�mcnt losses on financial assets 
Employtt bcnefil expense 
OUff:', timing differences 
Interest on lease Liability and depreciation on right-lO-usc asset 
Total deferred tax essets (A) 
Defcrf't'tl lu.-t liabilities, on account of: 
Pmpcrt)'. plnnl and cquipmc1ll 

\Tc.iir ended JI �brC"b 2024 
Bc-fDrt": lax Tex (c.s5ttnR")/ b:ncfit (0.$71 (0.87) 0,22 0.22 Nc1cftu 

(06S) (0,65) Aset Asut 
31 Morch 2024 31 March 2023 5.57 (12.29) 

Year tndc-d Yeor�adtd 
31 Morch 2024 Jl Much 20?J 

37.I� 33.DS 
112.3G) t.,.30 
14.?S 3-1.JS 

\'rat c-ndtd JJ !\"larch 202J 
Btfore tax Tax (upc,ut)/ NCI or 1111,. 

benefit 0.78 (0 23) 0 �� 0.78 (0.2J) 0.55 
Yurended Yeorcndtd 31 March 2024 31 March ZOU 

':)4.2.J !06.GJ 25.17% 29 12% 23,71 31 05 
(0 67) 
I 74 3.30 24.lK 34 35 

16.llo/• 3UI¼ 
Year ended Year <IDllii!'d JI Mur(h 2024 JI Mar,h 2023 

I 93 3 ,G 
I IG (0.�1) 2-91 I.JG 

J,58 7.22 20.59 I J.65 (7.82) (11.2�) 

To1al dc!crrcd In liobility (BJ (7.811 (I I.HI 
Dofcrrod 1u au<1/lllobu;1,1 n,1 (A+BI 12.76 0.18 
Tht' Comp�y oJT�ts: ta."t assets aad lilbilitlcs ifQOO OilJ)' tfil hiu-111 l0g.aUycnfo1cc111bJI:-nghl lo sc:t orrcwrC'.nl la."< assets Md current tax llabil1lic� '1tld lhe dcrcucd lax ossets ilnCI dcfortcd la"< li.nbUitics reif:itt to in�me la."<eS 
levied by lhe same lax aulhorily. Companr has recognised deferred l4x assets arising ou\ of tax losses {unobsorbcd depreciation) to lhc extent of net deferred tax liability on aecounl or l11xable temporary dilTcrcnccs. 

(ii) Movement in temporary differences 

MovCmcnl durini:, the year eoded 31 M.ar(h l0Z4 Asot Char:;r:/ lcredit) in Chariu (mJi1I in Asal I April 2023 the s1atement of other comprehensive 31 March Z02� 
prolil ond loss Income 

lmp1:1inn:n1 loS:St1i an linMCi:il assclS 3.46 1.53 1.93 

Emplo�tt benefit expense (0.41) (1.36) 0 21 I IG 
Other liming diO"ercnces I IG (1,75) 2 91 

lnu:reo:l on lease liability and deprccialion on right-lo-use asset 7 22 (DG) 14 58 
Propc:rty, plilllL and equipment (11.24) (3.42) (7.32) 
Net dcfrrrtd tu cwe1;!(1i1bilhics) 0.18 (IZ.J6J 0.21 12.76 

Movement durine tht )":�"" C"ndr.d 31 Mt.rth lOlJ Asot Ch11rgt/ (C'rediO in Cbar1t"/(credit) in As:11 . I April 2022 the statement of other comprehensive JI March 202.l 
profil and loss Income 

lmpnirmc:ut losses on l'inJuci.cl osscls 2 56 (0,90) 3.46 
Empk:.)"1:1 bcnc!il expense I 88 2.06 (0 l�l 
Chhcr timing diITerences 0.91 (0 25) 1.16 

In terest on \em liability ilnd depreciation on right�to-usc asscl 5,43 (I 78) 7.22 
MAT crcdil entitlement (0.08) (0 08) (0 23) (0.23) 
Propc.ny. pr3.nt and equipment (8.99) 2 25 (11.24) 
Nrt dtftrnd tll.l aHou/ (liiibi!ldtJ) 1,70 1.30 (0'1J) 0.18 



Pra bal Motors Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) (All amounts in Indian Rupees million, except share data) 27 Continj!enl liabilities nnd commilmcnls Pnrliculnrs As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 

Contingent liabilities 
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as de bis 
OST related matters Income tax related matters 
Commitments Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and not provided for 
Details of claims against the Company 

0.82 8.83 2.20 Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of cash flows, if any, in respect of the above as it is determinable only on receipt of judgement/ decision pending with various forums/ authorities. The Company has received all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for when provision is required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in the financial information. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial position. 
28 Earnings per share 29 30 
31 

A 

A. Basic earnings per shareThe calculation of profit attributable to equity share holders and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the purpose of basic earnings per share calculations are as follows: i) Net nrofit nltribulnble to equity share holdersParticulars Net profit for the year, at.tributablc to the equity share holders.(/\) ii) Weil!htcd nvcraj!e number of equity sbnrcs (bnsic ond diluted) Particulars Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year (Refer Note 12) Weighted average number of equity shares of INR 10 each outstanding during the year (C) Earnings per share, basic and diluted (NC) B. Diluted earnings per shareThere are no potential dilutive equity shares as at the balance sheet dates. Auditors' remuneration (net of goods and service tax) Pnrticulars Statutory audit Ta.,c audit Other services - Certifications Segment reporting Year ended Year ended 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 69.42 72.28 Year ended Year ended 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 6,942.09 7,283.54 Year ended Year·endcd 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 I 00 0.20 - 0 04 
. 0.12 1.00 0.35 Th.e Company has a single reportable business segment which is reviewed by Chief operating decision maker ('CODM'). The Company is engaged in the business of purchase and sale of commercial vehicles and related services The entire opcrntions are organised and managed as one organisational unit with the same set of risks and returns, hence the same has been considen:d as n:presenting a single primary segment. The Company renders its services in India only and does not have any operations in uconomic environments with dilTcrent risks and returns; hence it is considered operating in a single geographic segment.The Company has no significant customer whose carrying value exceeds 10% of the revenue from operations; hence no separate disclosure is made Accordingly, no segment disclosure has been made in these financial statements. 

Employee benefits 

Defined contribution plan The Company makc-s contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards provident fund and other funds which arc defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss as they accrue. 
B Defined benefit plan The Company operates certain post-<:mployment defined benefit plnn which is provided for based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The Company accrues gratuity as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 ( 'Gratuity Act'). Ian entitles an employee, who has rendered atleast five years of continuous servi aw,�l;:=ii+ll�ll!f 's salary for each year of cc (service of six months or above is rounded off to one year) at the time ofretirem ---� R 2.00 million. ctuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the statu otmts recognised in the nciol statements as at balance sheet date: 

25 ;:
� � 

� 

�NGA\.��* 



Prabal Motors Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) (All amounts in Indian Rupees million, except share data) 31 Employee benefits (continued) 

Reco11cifiation of the projected tfeji11ed be11ejit obligatio11 Particulars Defined benefit liability Plan assets IN ti defined benefit liability/ (asset) Liability for compensated absences Totnl employee benefit liability Gratuity Fund Asset Non-current defined benefit liability Current defined benefit liability 
C Reconciliation of net defined benefit (assets)/ liability 

i) Reconciliation of presenl values of defined benefil obligalion

As at As nl 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 8.76 5.78 8.07 8.08 

0.69 (2.30) 1.67 
8.76 7.45 0.69 (2.30) The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benfit (asset)/ liability and its components: 

D 

Particulars 

Defined benefit oblignlil)n as at the beginning of the year Current service cost Past service Cost Interest cost Benefits paid 
Re-n1e1isure111e11ts Actuarial gain/(loss) recognised in other comprehensive income - changes in demographic assumptionsActuarial gain/(loss) recognised in other comprehensive income• changes in financial assumptions• chan2cs in experience over the past period
Deji11ed benefit ob/igario11 as at tire e11d of the year 

ii) Reconci/ialion of orese/11 value of pla11 assets
Particulars 

Pion assets at the beginning of the year Contributions paid into the plan Benefits paid Interest income 
Re-meas11reme11ts Return on plan assets excluding amount included in net interest on the net defined liability/(asset) 
Bnlnnce at the end of the year 
N,t defined benefit liability/ (asset} Expenses recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss 
(i) Expenses reco011iJ·ed in the sta11dalo11e statement of prqjit and loss " Particulars Current service cost Past service cost Net interest on net defined I iabilitv Net g-ratuitv cost Year ended 

31 March 2024 

5.78 1.71 0.38 (0.19) 0.67 (0.32) 0.74 
8.76 

Year ended 31 March 2024 
8.08 0.20 (0.19) 0.54 (0.56) 8.07 0.69 Year ended 31 March 2024 1.71 
. (0.17) 1.54 Year endtd 

31 March 2023 

5.08 1.17 0.24 (0.51) 
. (0.42) 0.21 

5.78 

Year ended 
31 March 2023 0.61 7.67 (0.51) 0.03 0.28 

8.08 
(2.30) Year ended 31 March 2023 1 17 

. 0.21 l.38



Prabal Motors Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million) 
31 Employee benefits (continued) 

(ii) Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars 

Bnlnnce at the beginning 
Acturial (gain)/ loss on defined benefit obligation 
Loss/ (return) on plan asset excluding interest income 
Net gratuity (gain)/ cost 

E Plan Asset 
Plan asset comprises of the following: 
Pnrticulars 

Funds manaacd bv Life Insurance Corporn1ion oflndia 

Year ended31 March 2024
(0.78) 
1.09 
0.56 
0.87 

Year ended31 March 2024
8.07 

Year ended31 March 2023
(0.30) (0.21)
(0.28) 
(0.78) 

Year ended 
31 March 2023 

8.08 
The Company makes annual contribution to the Life Insurance Corporation of India ( 'LJC') of an amount advised by LJC. The Company was not informed byLIC of the investments made by them or the break up of the plan assets into various type of investments. The company is expected to contribute �3 Lakhs in theupcoming financial year. 

F Defined Benefit Obligation 
(i) Actuarial Assumptions
The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted average): 
Particulars 

Dise-0unt rate 
Salary growth rate 

At1rition rate 

Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligaiton 
The weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost as set out below; 

Year ended 
31 March 2024 

7.15% 
6.00% 

21 - 30 Years: 26% p.a 
31 - 40 Years: 22% p.a 
41 - 50 Years: 20% p.a 
51 - 57 Years: 26% p.a 

4.19 Years 

Year ended 
31 March 2023 

7.30% 
7.00% 

27% p.a wilhdrawal 
rate at all ages 

3.50 years 

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the standard table - IALM 2012-14. The Company assesses these assumptions 
with its projected long-term plans of growth and prevalent industry standards. The discount rate is based on the government securities yield. 
Gratuity is applicable only to employees drawing a salary in Indian rupees and there are no other foreign defined benefit gratuity plans. 
(ii) Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined 
benefit obligation by the amounts shown below: 
Particulars As a t  31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 

Increase Dccrcnsc Increase Decrease 
Discount rate (I% movement) (2.05), 2.14 ( l.72)1 l.78
Future salary growth (1% movement) 2.14 (2.09) 1.77 ( I. 73) 

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of the cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivityof the assumption shown. 



Prabal Moton Private Limited 
Note., to the financial statements (continued) 
(All amounts in Indian Rupee,; million) 

32 F'mancial Instruments- Fair values sud risk management 

A Accounting classifications and fair vaJues 

The following table shows the canylfig amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their b:vcls lfi the (air value hierarchy. 

As at 31 March 2024 

Particulan Note Carrying amount 

Ftnanclal assets at Mand•ton1y at FVTPL O1her fisw1cial 
amortised cost liabilities at 

amortised cost 

Fuuancilll asi:cu1 nol n1cuu:rcd at fair value 

·F"mancl.i ll!lets 

Cub and cash cquiwknts 9 43.74 

&nk �bna!S othc.,- than cash and cash equivalents 10 0 09 

Trndc rcc:eivJblcs 8 468.29 

Oih<r financial assets 11 22 80 . 
Tot.J 534.92 . . 

F'inanci.aJ liabilities measured at amortised cost 

Tr>dc payables 17 138 73 

Borrowings 13 1,533 91 L<O>c1£:ibil,tlcs 33 53174 

Other fin:mcial liabilit..ies 14 . . 17.74 

Tora! . 2.llJ.12 

As at 31 March 2023 

ParticuJars Note Carrying amount 

FinanciaJ assets at Mandatorily at FVTPL Other financial 
amortised cost liabilities at 

amortised 1-ost 

F"mancial assets not measured at fair value 

Financial assets 

Cash and cash equi,·alcnts 9 3824 . 
Bank bal:inccs other than cash and c::ish cquivalcuts 10 0.08 . . 
Trade rccci,·ablcs 8 102.11 . 
Other ru1.U1Ci11I assets II 30 03 1.01 

Rent Deposit (included in Other Flfiancial Assets) 1.89 17,23 

Total 172.34 18.24 . 

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 

Trade payeblcs 17 . 100,38 

Borrowings 13 . . 582.85 

Lease liabilities 33 265 42 

Olhcrfina:nciaJ liabilities 14 . . 2972 

Total . 978.38 

Total carrying �••I\.IC l�•dl 

43.74 

0.09 

46829 

22.80 

Sl4.92 

138.73 . 
1,533.91 

532.74 

17.74 

2,223.12 . 

Total carrying valu( Le,'<IJ 

38.24 38,24 

0.08 0,08 

102.11 102.11 

31.04 31.05 

19.12 1.89 

190.59 173,36 

100.38 100,38 

582.85 582,85 

265.42 

29.72 29.72 

978.37 712.95 

Note I :The Compillly has not disclosed I.he fair ,·:dues for firumcial instruments such as cash and cash equirnlcnts. lr.ilde rcccin1.blcs. trade payables etc •• bcc::iusc their Cll�'lng amounts :i.re a rcason:Jble approx.im:u..ion or foir ,·:Jlue. 
• Excludes im·cstmcnts in :Jssociates and subsidiaries mcasurcd at cosl. 

Measurement or fair values 
The fair value of I.he fina.:nci:il instruments is determined using discow1lcd. cash flow :i.nalysis The discount rates used is based on mm1:Jgcmcnt estimates 
Level 1 fair values 
lnvcstmad in C<fJil)' shares lNt MS a quoted price and which 11rc .;i.cti,•clr lr.ldcd on lhc stock exch.ingcs. It is been v11lucd usins the closing price JS al the reporting period on the stock C.'<Changes. 
Level 2 rair values 
Investment in mutual funds- is w1quoted price and arc observable for the asset or liability, either dircctJy(i.c., as priccs)or indircctJy (i c .dcrivOO from prices) 

Level 3 rair values 
lf one or more of the significanl inputs is not b11scd on observable d.!1.:1, Lhc instrumc:nt is included in level 3 _  
The quwitil..3.livc scnsiti, it:, :i.nalysis of le,·cl 3 fair value of financial instrument� al 31 M:irch 202<1 and 31 March 2023 has not been disclosed as il is nol material to the Company. 

Fair value 

l.cYel 2 '-"clJ 

. 

. 

. 
. 

. . 

. -

f"alrvaJue 

�-(12 L<,�l l 

. . 

. . 

. 1.01 

17.23 

. 18.14 

. 
265.42 

. . 
265.•1 

Tc1&1 

. 

Tou1I 

38 24 

0.08 

102 II 

32,06 

19.12 

191.60 

100.38 

582.85 

265.42 

29.72 

!178.37 !I-� ' ,:,I-.'
(•'" .,._, \ 

i :..•·, '-·/'. \ 

l j • . r - \ ,� • ·:r , � 
I � -,�-:- \ 6d i 

� \ }-; - ... " .. 



Pro.bot Motors Privnte Limited 
Notes to the linuncial stotements (continued) 
{All amounts in lndi:in Rupees million) 

32 F inunciol Instruments� Fuir volues ond risk manogement (continued) 
B Meosu.rement of fAir vnlues 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 
The fair values of investments in mutual fund \UUts is based on the net asset value ('NAV') as stated by the issue� of these mutual fund uri.its in the published statements as at balance sheet date. NA V 
represents the price at which the issuer will issue further units of mutual fund and the price at which issuers will redeem such units from the in\."cstors... 

C Finnncinl risk management 

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, Uql.Udity risk and market risk, 

i) Risk mana,ement rrnmework 
ii) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk offinanc:111 loss to the company if a customer or counterparty 10 a financial instrument fails to meel its contractual obligations. and arises principally from company's receivables from 
customers, loans and ini,,fflnuml in mutual funds. 
The Coffl(W\y J C."<poRd 10 c:rcdii nsk as o result of the risk of coun1c,panles do(aulling on their obligatktns. The Company's exposure to credit risk prmurd)' r�ta1cs 10 11\\"c;SttnCnit. ac-coun11 tccclvable and 
cash and ca.sh equivalents. The CompM)' monitors; :w1 llmits its c-xposute 10 ctecilt t"Jsk en a contlnuous b�rS. To m.inaac- 1hfs 1h� Compil\Y pcrfodkalfy n,view> tho_ finuiti.td ,ctabillty of i1s C'lillOmers, taking 
into account ihe (1111Ulti:il condilion, C\lrrCnt economic 1,c.nds and :anlilysii of hlsloric:111 b::,d debts And agclng or G«ountJ rc:<civabh:t. The tu.1t}'111i; llmowu or fUUlnciol 1usits rcprcsc:n1s maximum ct"cdit risk 
exposure 

The Compt1n)' establishes an allov."Mce for creill1 Joss that represents its estimate orcxpec:1cd losses in respect of trade and other receivables bused on the past and the recent coUection trend The mnx.imum 
oxposune 10 the credit risk nt the roponlng do1• is primarily from trade receivables 0100wllin3 to lNR 7.66 million (31 March 2023: lNR I U7 million). 

The Company has no significant customer whose carrying value exceeds 10% of the revenue from operations There is no significant concentration of credit risk, 

The movement in allowance for credit loss in respect of financial asset during the year was as follows: 

AllowainC'e for credit loss 

B�lan,e- at the be-dinning or Lh.c year 
Bld debts writ ten off during the year 
lmp3irmcru loss recognised/ (reversed) 
Ualiuita al lhe end of the nar 

As al 

3 I Morch 2024 

IJ.87 

(4,21) 
7-66 

Asou 

31 March 2023 

9,19 

2,68 
11.87 

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents Bnd other bank balances is limited as the Company generally transacts with billlks and financial institutions with high credit ralings assigned by domestic credit rating 
agencies. 

The Company allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on the historic trend or ,eceivables movement between the ageing buckets The loss rales are "tlculated based on the simple average of the 
trend in receivable ageing. 

Not due 
L= than 6 months 
6 months - l year 
More 1 han l Y�!II' 

iii) Liquidity risk 

Avemi!.t Loss fi:uc 
As Pl 31 Murch 2024 As ol 31 Murch �0Z3 

0% 
l¾ 

14% 
100¼ 

0% 
3% 

24% 
100'/4 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities tha1 ace senled by delivering cash or another financial nsset. The Company's 
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. under both normal and srressed conditions. wi1hou1 incurring 
w1acceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation 

The Company believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived, The tnble below provides details rego.rding the undiscounled contrnctual 
maturilies of significant financial liabilities as of31 March 2024: 
P.irtkuhu-s 
Trudo paynbles 
Borcowings 

Lease liabilities 
O1hc-r financial liabilities 

Puy:1ble within J yr11r Mon!: lhan J yenr 
138 73 

982 67 551 24 
24.66 1,488 54 
17 74 

Toto! 
138.73 

Ull91 
1.513.20 

17 74 

The tAblc btlow Drovidts,dc111Ils ro-�tdin� the undisc-ountc.d t,ontmctu.ll rm1uri1lCJ of si�nUit'llrt ruumcift.l liabilities as of 31 M:an::h 2023: 
rartkular, Payable within J yenr More than J year Toiul 

Trade p•y•blcs 

lkiriowUins; 

1.cosc liobm1;.. 

Other financio.1 liabilities 

iv) Market risk 

99.71 
518.30 

21.85 

29,72 

0 67 

64 55 

243.56 

100 38 

582 85 

265.42 

29 72 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in mark el prices, such as foreign exchange rales, inlerest mies and equity prices 
Foreign currency risk 
The Compilrty is exposed to cu.rren.cy risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the tum:ncics in which trnnsactions are denomin:itad :and the functional currency of 1he Company. The fw1ctional 
c:ummcy 0r1bc Comp::iny it JNR e1nd rho Company does not have any material foreign currency lrlU'W'l.tlfons during the years ended 31 March 2024 a.ml 31 March 2023. 
CuJ.b nciw and fair ".atue lnrtrc11 r.ut risk 
The Company's main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk, The interest rate on 1he Company's financiAI inSlrumenls 
is bas:td on rncirke1 rates. The Company monitors the movement in interest rates on an ongoing basis. 

(a) Jnte�st rnte risk exposu� 
The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the year are as follows: 

1-innncial Uabiliti(>J· honk borrowin s 
Vilrici:blt: nm: long le.rm borro\\ings indudinu currl!nl nwuritles 

There were no vtri.ablo rate Jong-term borrowU'lg.s during the cuuent year ended 31 March 2924, 

S�n.tithi1• 

Particulnrs 

I% increase in v.airioblo rate 
1% decrease in v.ui:cbla nuo 

P·.ot1lc-ul11.n 

I¾ increase UI '11rirsbl,: ,ale 
11:asc in variable rate 

t'Ji!St rale sensitivity is based on the closing balance of variable interest rate borrowings from banks and fu1,_ 

JI �ln1"<h 20N JI 1\-·hrth ?02l 
S00.00 SS.S$ 

Impact on profit or (lossJ 

31 Mnroh 20?4 )I Mon:h 202J 
(S.00) (0.56) 
S.00 0,56 

lm ar1 on r· uit' , nt'I or111J 
.ll Morda 202-1 JI luroh ZOZJ 

(3.74) (0.421 
}. 74 0.42 

� 
�e,c,,<:S_, 

---..;:::--=:..-� 



Pru.bol Motors Private Llmilied 
Notes to the financial stnlements (continued) 
(Ail amounts in Indian Rupees million) 

33 Leases 

"J'bc, Compr.,,ny h&i taken sh owrooms iu,d sc re centres on lease from various parties from where business operations are performed The leases typically run for a period of 5 year - 45 years Le1tse payments 
are ,cncigOti111cd nearing the expiry LO ran�, nwkct rentals 

(i) Lease liabilities 
l'ollowin11 are the chmgos in lho lcMO il•biUtie, for the yo,rcnd,d 31 March 202Aond 31 'M=h 2023: 
P:artitul:u3 
811ance as at l April 
1\ddi1ions 
Fino.nee cost accrued during the period 
Oicrccognition oflease liability during the year 
Ri:mc3:SUtemCnt on accoWlt of modification 
f'D)'fOOH of lease liabilities 
B::ilance os at 31 March 
Non--c:wttnl lease liabilities 
Curttnt l�•Me liabilities 

(1i) ftf11J11rity mm/.r,·I, -omtrnc:tunl 11111/Jsr:mmtt!d cnili f/OH'f 
Par1h::ult1n 
Less than one year 
One to five years 
More than five years 
To1QJ undisr-ountrtl le-ase U:1bili1les 

(iii) Right-of-11se assets 
Rfaht-of-mt ASSCtlrtllltcd 10 leased oroocrt_ics 1.hn1 do not meet 1hc definition ori.rwcstmcnt otonNtu QJC orcsentcd u oro11env. ol,in1 nnd ,aWomen1 
P.arliculnt5 
Balance at I April 
Addilion to right-of-use assets 
D�posal 
Remeasurement on accowlt of modification 
Deoreciation for 1hc vei\r 
Balance: al 31 Match 

(J'i) Operating leases • 

31 Mor<h 2024 
265 42 
164 06 
43,07 

I 10,93 
(50,74) 
532.74 
508,08 

24 66 

31 March 2024 
24,66 

281.61 
1,206,93 
1,513.20 

JI Mmrrh lO?J 
240.63 
164 06 

. 
I 10,93 
(40,82) 

474.SO 

31 Mortlr 2024 
43.07 
40.82 

JI Mor<h 202,1 
(S0.74 

JI March !02l 
129.S� 
1s1.12 

14.I� 

(29.37) 
265.42 
243.56 

21.85 

JI Morth 1023 �2.9S 
181.78 
146,19 
370.92 

JI M•rth 202J 
109 99 
IS I 12 

(20.49) 

240.GJ 

JI M orth 20ZJ 
14.14 
20.49 

JI Morch ?OB 

The Company is obligated under cancellable operating leases for its certain office premises which are renewable at the option of both the lessor and lessee_ Total rental expenses under such leases amounted to 
Rs 0.28 million (3 J March 2023:Rs Nil). These arrangements do not quaJify as a lease as per the reqWremenls oflnd AS 116 

34 Cupitol Management 
The Company's policy is to maintain a stable capitaJ base so as 10 maintain investor, creditor and marker confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors capital on the 
basis of return on capitol employed as well as the debt to total equity ratio. For the purpose of debt to total equity ralio, debt considered is long-term and short-term borrowings Total equity comprise of 
issued share capital and a1I other equity reserves. 

Tolol equity a11rlbutablc to the equity shareholders or the Company (A) 

Nori - current borrow;ngs 
Currcnl borrowings 
Totnl borrowings 
�; cash and cash equivalents 
Adj1a1ed net debt (B) 
Adlwied not d,b1 to 10101 equity r.rtlo [DIA) 

Asut 
31 �lnrth 202-1 

199.20 
551 24 
982 67 

1,533.91 
43 74 

1,490.17 
7.48 

Asiat 
31 Mord, ?023 

IJ0.44 
64,55 

518.30 
582.85 

38.24 
544.61 

4.18 



Prebal Motors Private Limited 
Notes to the financiol stntemenls (continued) 
(All amounts in Indien Rupees million) 

35 Related parties 
/. Nome� ofn,loted J/Orti,:.s and description ofrelatiomhip: 
(a) Ultimo.to Holding Company Popular Vehicles and Services Limited (w.e.f. 01 February 2023) 

(b) Holding Company 

(c) Entities in which KMP has significant influence 

Keracon Equipments Private Limited 

Kuttukaran Trading Ventures 

Kullukaran Engine Rebuilders 

K P Paul Foundation, India 

(d) Fellow Subsidiaries Popular Mega Motors India Private Limited 
Vision Motors Private Limited 

(e) Other related pJt1i°' with whom the Company had transactions during the year 
- Key management personnel and their relatives (Kl\,!P) Mr John K Paul, Director 

Mr� Francis K Paul, Director 

35 II. Related party trnnmctions: 

Mr. M.A. Sajjan (Appointed w.e.f28 Feb 2023) 
Mr Dinesh (Appointed w e.f 15 Nov 2023) 
Ms Malini Eapen (Appointed w,e.f 15 Nov 2023) 

(a) The Company has entered into the following transactions with related parties during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 

Pnrticult1r� 

Purch,m: of assets 
Populllf Vehicles and Services Limited 
Popular Mega Motors India Private Limited 
Kuttukaran Trading Ventures 
Pu.rt.base ofvehicles/accessoriea and spares 
Populnt Vehicles and Services Limited 
Exrionso met by the tompony 
Populnr Auto Dealers Private Limited 
Kuuuknran Trading Ventures 
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited 
Popular Mega Motors India Private Limited 
Jnlutil expense on intercorporate loan 
Populnr Vehicles and Services Limited 
Corpot4.le Social Responsibility Expense, 
K P Paul Foundation, India 
SAie or motor vehicle 
Popular Mega Motors India Private Limited 
Sale or other support service 
Po11ulnr Vehicles and Services Limited 
Populor Mega Motors India Private Limited 
E,:pon.sc met on behulf of the Company 
Populnr Vehicles and Services Limited 
Popular Mega Motors India Private Limited 
Repairs and mnintenonce 
Popular Mega Motors India Private Limited 
Populnr Vehicles and Services Limited 
Lubour charges 
Kuttuk:u-"11 Engine Rebuilders 
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited 
Populor Mega Motors India Private Limited 
Corporate guarantee commission pnid 
Keracon Equipments Private Limited 
[ult'.rcorpotott lonn received 
Pcpubr Vehicles and Services Limited 

35 II/. Balance ntcdmb/1! roml (iK,)'tlbl.s to related 1rlirs os ot lhe balance s/wal duf�: 
Particulars 

Trade poyuble 
Populnr Vehicles and Services Limited 
Kuttukarnn Trading Ventures 
Kuuulcanul Engine Rebuilders 
Keracon Equipments Private Limited 
Other receivables 
Popular Mega Motors India Private Limited 
Other payable 
Ku11ukatnn Trading Ventures 
Kcrnto.n Equipments Private Limited 
Long term borrowings 
John K Paul 

party transactions entered during the year were in ordinary course of business and arc on arm's length 

Year tndcd 
31 March 202� 

1.58 
I 33 

-

0.61 
4 98 
0 04 

141 

1.21 

0.20 

0,28 
0 09 

-

0.04 
o.oz

0.55 
0.01 
0.01 

2.02 

500 00 

As OI 
31 Murch 2024 

I 37 
0 05 
0.06 
0.78 

0,06 

17.87 
17.S7 

500.00 

Year e.nt.lcd 
31 March 20?3 

2,97 

0.59 

0.02 
0,61 
J 01 
0.02 

0.54 

-

0 14 

--
0.17 
-

0 25 

As ol 
31 March 2023 

I 15 

0 05 
0,29 

17.87 
17,87 



Prnbal Motors Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million) 

36 a) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested �citl1cr from borrowed funds or share premium or any 0th.er sources or kind of funds) by the Compnny to or in any other 
J!Crsons or entitles, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities dentilied in any manner whatsoever _by or on behalf of !he Com puny (''Uhimnte Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

36 b) No funds have been received by the Company from ony persons or cnlhics, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that ihe Company-shnll, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
("Ultimote Beneficiaries") or p_rovide any guarantee, security or the like on behnlf of the Ultimotc Beneficiaries. 

37 Ratios as per the Schedule m requirements• 

a) Current Rnlio = Current AsJCts divided by Current Linbilities 

b) 

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 

Current assets 1,695.58 643.89 
Current liabilities 1,237.14 746.94 
Rntio 1.37 0.86 
% Channc from orcvious vcar 58.99% (11.59)¾ 
The improvement of current asset ratio is on account of increase in inventory as at 31 March 2024 compared to previous year, while short term borrowings have been repaid 
using intercorporate loan received. 

Debt Eauitv rulio = Total debt divided by Total equity where total debt refers to sum of current & non current borrowings 
Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 

Current borrowings (a] 982.67 518.30 
Non current borrowings [b J 551.24 64.55 
Tot:il debt[a] + [b] 1,533.91 582.85 
Total equity 199.20 130.44 
Ratio 7.70 4.47 
¾ Change from previous year 72.33% 12 81% 

The mcrease m debt equity rat10 1s du� to ma1orly due to higher inventory as at 31 March 2024 which lead to higher mventory funding ut1hsahon 

C t c) D b S crv1cc C overngc R . E ntiO= ·1 arn1ngs nvm able to service debt divided by total infcrcs and borrowrn2S 

d) 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Profit before tax 94.21 106 63 

Finance cost 124.19 45 69 

Depreciation and amortisation 92.23 40.44 
E:1miugs available to service debt 310.63 192.76 
Interest cost 124.19 45.69 
Non-cutrcnl borrowings 551.24 64.55 
Current borrowings 982.67 518.30 
Debt ser"ice coverage rntio 0.19 0.31 
% Change from previous year end (38.91)% 66.93% 

. . . The decrease m debt service coverage rnt10 1s due to the commencement offull-OcdgL-d operahons in Mahamshtrn. lughcr finance costs n:sulllng from increased 111,tml 
investments and higher Inventory funding utilization in Maharashtra. 

Return on Equity/.lteturn on ln"esl'ment = Net profit after tax dh-idcd by E_quity 
Particulars As at 31 Marcb 2024 As ut 31 March 2023 

Net profit anor tax 69.42 72 28 
Total equity 199.20 130 44 
Rntio 34.85% 55.41% 
% Chan�c from pnwious year (37.11)% (18 83)% 

The major reason for decrease in Return on equity is due to the commencment of full fledged operations in Maharashtra, acquired in the previous financial year. This resulted 
in additional initial operating costs during the current year. 



Prabnl Motors Private Limited 
N�!es lo the financial statements (continued) 
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million) 

e) 

I) 

g) 

Net profit ratio = Net profit ofter lnx divided by Soles 
Particulars Year ended Year ended 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
Nci Plofit ofter UlX 69.42 72 28 
Sales 6,454.16 3,893.38 
Rat'io 1.08% 1.86% 
% Chnnae from previous ve,1r (42.06)% 24.00% 

The major reason for decrease in Ne! profit ratio is due to the commencment of full fledged operations in Maharashtra, acquired in the previous financial year. This resulted 
in additional initial operating costs during the current year. 

lnvcniory Turnover Ratio = Cos! of materials consumed lllvidcd by closin2 in,•cntorv 
Particulars Year ended Year ended 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
PurchllSc of stock in trade [al 6,272.88 3,646.42 
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade (b] (545.34) (151.30) 
Cost of material conswned [a]+(b] 5,727.54 3,495.12 
Closing inventory 1,017.75 472.41 
Ratio 5.63 7.40 
% Chanl!C from nrevious veur (23.94)% (30.00)% 

The major reason for reduction in inventory turnover ratio is the increase in purchases during the year due to commencment ofMaharahstra operations.This is also resulted in 
higher level of stock at the year end which impacted inventory turnover. 

Net cnnitnl Turnover Ratio = Total income divided bv Net Workine cnpitill whereas net workine cnpitnl= current assets - current liab1h!Ies 
Particulars Year ended Year ended 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
Revenue from operations and other income 6,464.12 3,911.14 
Current asset (a] 1,695.58 643 89 
Current liability (b] 1,237.14 746.94 
Not working captial [a]-(b] 458.44 (103.05) 
Ratio 14.10 (37.95) 
% Chnnge from previous year (137. 15)% (89.10)% 
Net workmg cnp11ol has dropped pnmanly due to an mcrease m mventory because of startmg of full-fledged operatmns in Maharashtra. This increase m inventory has also 
impacted inventory turnover and net working capital ratio. 

h) T d R ' bl T ra e ccc,va C urnovcr R . R at10 = evenue rom oocrof1ons IVI e l'Y trn e fCCl'.'IYO d' 'd db ' bl cs 

i) 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Revenue from operntions 6,454.16 3,893.38 
Trade receivable 468.29 102.11 
Trade receivable turnover ratio 13.78 38.13 
% Chnnee from orcvious \'Clt end (63.85)% (25.00)% 

Higher sales volwne in the year ended 31 March 2024 (due to commencment of full-fledged operations in Maharashtra) has resulted in higher trade receivables on the 
balance sheet compared to the previous financial year. Consequently, the ratio is lower. 

Return on Canitnl cmnlo\'ed = Eaminl!s before interest and tnxcs(EBIT) divided by canitol cmnlo\'cd (Totnl e uilv + llorrowines) 
Portkulnrs Yeor ended Year ended 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
Prom before tax 94.21 106,63 
Finance cost 124.19 45.69 
Earnings before interest and tax 218.40 152.32 
Total equity[a] 199.20 130.44 
Total borrowings[b] 1,533.91 582.85 
Capital employed [a]+[b) 1,733.11 713.29 
Ratio 0.13 0.21 
% Chanl'.e from previous vear {40,99)% (48.67)% 

The major reason for decrease in Return on equity is due to the commencment of full fledged operations in Maharashtra, acquired in the previous financial year. This resulted 
in additional initial operating costs during the current year. 

j) T d I' bl T ra e aya C uroovcr R ' C allo = • I ost o ma term consume lVl e Y' c os1112 Ira c pay� d d' .d d b  I ' d cs 
PnrticulDrs Year ended Year ended 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
Cost of material conswned 5,727.54 3,495.12 
Trade payable 138.73 100.38 
Trade payable turnover ratio 41.28 34.82 
% Chnn�c from previous vcar end 18.57% (77.30)% 

Management has only assesed reasons for variances above 25% 



Prabal Motors Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million) 

38 In lerms ofngreemenl dated I January 2023, the Company had laken over the business as wholesale distribulor of vehicles, spare parts/accessories of Bharat Benz division -
Vidarbha nnd Mnrathwnda region across seven locntions from Provirn,inl Truckinl,! Private Limi1cd, Mnhnrashtra for a consolidated value of Rs 110 Million 

Details of Assets taken over from Provincial Trucking Pvt Ltd are furnished below: 
A. Consideration transferred 
The following lable summarises the acquisition date fair value of conside,alion lransf<irrcd:
l'nrliculars 
Total considcrn1ion 

B. Identifiable assets ucquired and Iiabilties assumed 
Pnrliculnrs 
Property, Plant nnd Equipment 
Non Compete Fee 
Other Assets 
Total Assets 

Other liabilities 
Total Linbililics 

Net identifiable assets acquired 

C.Goodwill 
Goodwill orising from acquisition has been determined as follows:
Pnrtirulnrs
Consideration transferred/ transferable 
Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired 
Goodwill 

Amount 
110.00 

Amount 
87.70 
20.00 
2.30 

110.00 

110.00 

Amount 
110.00 
110.00 

39 Additional rcgula1ory information pursuant 10 the requirement in Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 
i) The Company docs not have any Bonami property, where any proceeding bas been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property. 
ii) The Company docs not have any transac1ions with compnnics struck oO: 
iii) The Company hos not revalued its property, plant and equipmcn1· ,right-of-use assets or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year. 
iv) lbe Company has 1101 traded or invested in Crypto curJCncy or Virtual. Curccncy during the financial year.
v) 111c Company doos not hnve any such lmnsnc1ion which is nol recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 196 I.
vi) None of the entities in The Company haw been deda.rcd wilful dcfauJ1cr by any bank or financial ins1itu1ion or govcmmcnl or nny government authority.
vii) The Company hns complied with 1hc nwnber of layers prescribed under the Companies Ac1, 2013. 
viii) The Compnny has 001 entered inlo any scheme ofarran�ment which has an accounling impac1 on current or previous financial year. 

40 There are no significant subsequent events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the financial statements as on the balance sheet date. 
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